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Ping An Bank Company Limited
China Construction Bank
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Basement level 1, Tower 5
Aoyuan City Tiandi

Hanxi Avenue, Panyu District
Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

26/F, The Cameron
No.33 Cameron Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
MEHE

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

Gross profit

Net profit

Listing expenses

Net profit excluded from listing expenses
Earnings per share (RMB cents)
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

THE BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL REVENUE BY BREESBESHEK I M
BUSINESS SEGMENT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Property management service segment Y% EERBE DB

— Property management services —MEERRE 305,997 235,086
— Sales assistance services —HEWB R 98,907 43,920
— Community value-added services — @ g ER 48,324 38,927

453,228 317,933

Commercial operational service segment BEEXEZRKE 5B

— Commercial operation and —EEEBEREBRE
management services 102,577 49,586
- Market positioning and —-MBEMREFBERS
business tenant sourcing services 63,030 68,458
165,607 118,044
Total & &t 618,835 435,977
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET HEERRAE
At 31 December
Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR T
Total assets EEHAT 503,046 570,879
Total liabilities EEHAE 376,755 459,885
Total equity RSB 126,291 110,994

RERELEETEEGRAT —Z—N\EH% (05



Year in Review
FEXEOEHE

FEB Signing Aoyuan Ba River Bridge project JUN Signing Xiushui Aoyuan Plaza project
and Jiyi Shangcheng Plaza project 7‘\)% and grandly opening Chongging
BHRBEEABRBIEE S—HNESE Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza
5| BHOBKRAEESEBEANEERERE
LR 2 UNGES

Signing Duyun Aoyuan Plaza and JUL The grand opening of Zhuhai Aoyuan
iﬁ Panzhou Aoyuan Plaza projects tﬁ Plaza
ENHIRRES  BNRBEESER KERE RS NERE

06  Aoyuan Hedlthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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The successful submission of A1
application proof contributing to the
steady process of the listing. Entering
into a strategic cooperation agreement
with Beijing Chunyu Tianxia Software
Company Limited and the grand launch
ceremony of Aoyuejia APP version 2.0
AVERERKTY  EH TERT i - AL
REMRTEMHBERRRAEZHURSER
A R B AH SR APP2.ORIEN & A% K817

Entering into strategic cooperation
agreement with Korean Genius Group,
signing Jiangxi Fuzhou Caizixiang
Asset-light project, the opening
ceremony of the first Ao Yeah Day of
Aoyuan Property and the grand launch
of Yeah service mode

HBENEAREERSHRA ERE LR
AIAEMNT FEEEEBRBURREAY
XA JE R AR R A RIS AR KA

Year in Review
FEXEDOEE

Hong Kong Office was grandly opened
and several pre-roadshows were carried
out in Hong Kong, Shanghai, Beijing,
Singapore and other regions, successfully
attracting the wide attention of investors
EEMAERERE ANEEEE L
BdER IR F MRS 5 RKE
pIh sl IR E & Bz

The grand opening of Foshan Aoyuan
Plaza, Aoyuan TCM Centre (Healthcare
Plaza store) and Aoyuan TCM Centre
(Luogang store)

BLRERERES BEFBMAZHE (BEEE
HiE) REPEE(BEEE)EEME

RERELETEEGRAT —Z—N\E% 07



2018 Honor and Awards
—E—)\FHERERIA
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—E— )\ FHERRIF
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Aoyuan Healthy
Life Group Company Limited (“Aoyuan Healthy” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” or, “we”, or “us”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

“our”

On 18 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”), the Group successfully
spun off from China Aoyuan Group Limited (“China Aoyuan”)
for a separate listing on the main board (“Main Board"”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Leveraging on the Group's rich experience in
property management and long-term and stable cooperation
with the parent company, China Aoyuan, the Group actively
expanded its service offerings to commercial operation
and healthcare areas, seized the opportunities brought by
industrial transformation and upgrading and policies related
to the development of the Greater Bay Area. With the joint
efforts of all the management and employees, the Group
achieved a leap-forward growth in the past few years, with its
various operational indicators greatly improved, which has laid
a foundation for the Group to become a leading provider of
property management and commercial operational services in
China.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved
revenue of approximately RMB618.8 million, representing a
significant year-on-year increase of 41.9%. Core net profithote
was approximately RMB93.8 million, representing a significant
year-on-year increase of 25.7%. The board of directors (the
"Board”) of the Company recommended the payment of a
final dividend of RMBO0.055 per share.

In recent years, with the acceleration of urbanization, and the
increase in gross national product and per capita disposable
income, consumers’ demand for superior living conditions and
high-quality property management services is continuously
increasing in China. This is a fundamental reason for the
development of the property management industry and
commercial operational industry in China, which has brought
development opportunities to the property management
industry in China, so that the total GFA of properties
under management in China has increased rapidly and the
commercial entities have increased as well.

BMRARR :

AAMARERBRFEEETEEARLQA (TR
BREIR[ARA] EREMNBARRE
[(REEISTHMDBE_F-N\F+ A
STt -HLEFENEFRERS

AEBR _ZE-NAF=A+N\B(LHTH
) P EEREEEROERAR ([FER
B KRNDFREBEBARHAARRAE ([HE
D ERMERDBL EH-BIEAEE
CEMNMXEELR ERARTERERY
RIEMA FRE A5 B 1 &0 ik 75 5K T i T
EHEEENMARRES YENMEEXHEL
FARMAERBRREROKE E2REEE
METIHARS AT RBELFERTEY
AMER ZHELEEABRA EET A
SEXRASTENEEEMARELRGHER
B EE b

HE-_Z-—N\FE+_F=+—HIFE K&
BEERWRAHARKEECI18.8EHEE L AL AR
£41.9% L FFIBYELH B AREIZEHE
TR ARBERLGSI% - AABIEES ([E
Fo ) ERRERFEREBTRARKE0.0557T

MFER - BEERELCEERNMR BREERE
K N5 7] 32 BE A B9 AN S 0 - o BB B E B
BENEERRERSEEMEEERFNTX
M- PEMRERTERARBRE
BTERRN-—BRARE RHEYWEERT
EWERERBB CHEEEMERELEER
BAREIZIN LS X B TEIE M-

Note: The core net profit represents the Group’s profit excluding the effect of listing expenses.

MiaE - AR FIBRGIR LR ERZENARERT -
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Aoyuan Healthy is one of the few service providers in China
with strong strength in the field of property management and
commercial operational services and with business covering
different regions of China. It provides diversified property
management services for residential and non-residential
properties. Different from the general traditional property
companies, we have developed our diversified business in two
fields, with commercial operation and property management
as the dual cores of our development, and we also seize the
opportunity in the health industry to create a “property +
health” industry. The Group operates on a large scale. On 31
December 2018, the Group provided property management
services for 61 properties in 25 cities of 11 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in China, with the total
GFA under management of property management business
exceeded 10.4 millions square meters.

The Group's property management services provide diversified
services to customers, such as sales assistance services to
property developers and owners during their pre-sale activities,
at the pre-delivery and post-delivery stages. In addition, the
Group also provides property management services for most of
the property projects developed by the parent company, which
continues to be one of the Group’s stable sources of income
in the future. The Group also actively endeavor to expand our
cooperation with independent property developers to increase
income, as demonstrated by the growth in our revenue from
independent developers in the property management service
segment.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BREREATFHEHIBEVEEELGEES
R ESY EFERDE N EREBEPETRH
HWENRBERER — BEERIEFEWE
REZEECVWEEERE -BRMENR —KE
GWMER ETERTENSTLLEBER
NREAXEBEERMETEREERZL  TER
AEEESMNESE ITE[ME+RER]E
¥ XAEEEBEERERAN RZZE—N\F+=
A=Zz+-—B BREEZGEBEZFHIMEED H
EMEERESEARTHCIEDEREMES
EBRE PRYEEEEBNEEHEC BB
10488 F K-

AEBNMEEERG/AEPEHRZHRS
MEBRE XN ERXNRAMERER X
TRHHEHPMB W AEETFSEFR
ARBENABOMEBEBREMEEERS
FEKSAEEGRIZENRARIRZ —#
WMKREMEERRE D BB ILAEEO WK RE
AR AEETEGENERRMEF LY
XHAEROAE MR-

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In addition to the strong property management services, the
Group’s commercial operational services also achieved rapid
growth and recorded high gross profit. With the upgrading of
consumption and the rapid expansion of the consumer service
industry, consumers have increasingly high demand for the
shopping experience and service quality, so the demand for
professional commercial operational services has increased
accordingly. At present, the Group mainly provides market
positioning and business tenant sourcing services before the
opening of shopping malls, as well as commercial operation
and management services after the opening of shopping malls,
successfully achieving leap-forward growth. In addition, the
Group provides commercial operational services for the parent
company’s “Aoyuan Plaza” and “Aoyuan City Plaza” brands,
which helps stabilize the Group’s revenue and increases its
market share. During the year, revenue from the Group's
commercial operation segment increased to approximately
RMB165.6 million, representing a significant year-on-year
increase of 40.3%. The Group’'s extensive experience in
the property management industry helps to provide quality
commercial operation and management services after projects
start to operate, and to produce a synergistic effect from
diversified businesses.

In 2018, the Group seized the opportunity to enter the health
industry, and created special TCM medical service communities
in the property projects managed by us to provide residents
with more convenient community medical services. At
the same time, the Group also vigorously promoted the
development of medical aesthetic service and opened a
medical aesthetic service clinic in the commercial entities
we managed in Guangzhou on 15 March 2019, combining
the perfect property services with medical aesthetic services
to create comprehensive community services with Aoyuan
Healthy's characteristics. In addition, in August last year, we
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with Genius
(HH BRI &), a Korean medical aesthetic service
provider under the branch of the brand name "“PPEUM”
in Seoul, Korea, to conduct cooperation on many aspects
including medical aesthetic service training and the operation
and management of medical aesthetic service clinics, and
connect online platforms to the online medical consultation
service platforms of “Chunyu Yisheng (H&E4) " and
“Health 160(##EE160)" so as to provide “online + offline”
health services and develop diversified value-added services to
enhance customer satisfaction.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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In the future, the Group will continue to implement a
diversified development strategy, focusing on the development
of the “commercial operation + property management +
healthy” industry and expanding diversified value-added
services to enhance customer satisfaction. On the one hand,
it will continue to consolidate its position in the property
management services and commercial operational service
industries. On the other hand, it plans to focus its future
development on cities with large population and large growth
potential. We believe that, driven by a number of favorable
macro factors, the Company’s performance will continue to
improve rapidly.

The Group's successful access to the Hong Kong capital market
is the beginning of a new journey for the Group. Against
the background of the transformation and upgrading of the
property management industry, we will continue to deepen
reform and innovation, develop and upgrade online and offline
platform, and introduce smart community platform to respond
to the ever-changing needs of customers. This will allow the
Group to use the big data platform to provide more accurate
data analysis services for the Group’s commercial operations
and to provide better service for the customers. The Group
will proactively embrace the capital and technology, seize
market opportunities, fully respect the needs and experience
of customers, and continue to enhance the reputation of
Aoyuan brand, so as to further expand the business scale of
the Group and enhance its operational capabilities and core
competitiveness.

The Group’'s development and good performance are
attributed to the strong support of shareholders and customers
as well as the hardworking and dedication of all the staff. |
would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all shareholders, partners and customers on behalf
of the Board of the Company for their trust and support. We
will continue to work hard, maximize values for our customers
and shareholders and create desirable returns.

Guo Zining
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 28, 2019

Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Overview

The Group is a renowned property management service and
commercial operational service provider in the PRC offering
diversified property management services for residential and
non-residential properties and a full range of commercial
operational services for shopping malls, with a focus on mid
to high-end properties and mixed-use property development
projects. To implement our business strategy of diversifying our
service offering to meet the evolving demands of customers,
we offer diversified services such as traditional Chinese
medicine and medical beauty services for the properties under
management.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved an
increase in the GFA under management of 1.8 million sg.m.
under the property management service segment and new
opening of four shopping malls, of which three were under
the commercial operation by the Group, and newly acquired
commercial operation contracts with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 157,000 sqm.. As at 31 December 2018, our Group
provided property management services to 61 properties in
25 cities across 11 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in the PRC with a total GFA under management of
approximately 10.4 million sg.m.. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group provided commercial operational services to nine
shopping malls in operation with GFA under management
of approximately 424,000 sq.m. in seven cities in the PRC,
and contracted to provide commercial operational services
to 25 shopping malls with contracted GFA of approximately
1.3 million sgq.m., among which our Group contracted to
provide commercial operation and management services to
22 shopping malls with contracted GFA of approximately
1.1 million sq.m.. The Group applied diversified services
in two ecospheres of “lives in properties and commercial
complex” and continuously integrated resources to provide
medical beauty services and traditional Chinese medicine
services for customers. The Group created a “light medical
beauty” concept of “professional medical beauty is around
you" for the medical beauty (“medical beauty”) with the
grand opening of the first MS ARORA Wanbo flagship store
on 15 March 2019. The Group was dedicated to creating the
service mode of “internet + traditional Chinese medicine” for
the traditional Chinese medicine service segment, so as to
introduce more healthy lifestyle and idea of traditional Chinese
medicine to communities, and provide convenient, intelligent
and interesting new traditional Chinese medicine services.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THERES R

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) Ex¥EDmE| £

The breakdown of shopping malls newly opened during the TFNEREIIAANFEEHFHEFSHM:
year is set out in the table below:

Occupancy
rate as at
Opening date Contract Contract GFA 31 December
Shopping malls (Month-Year) Location effective date  Contract term (Year) (sq.m.) 2018@
RZZ-N\F
RERH AREEHE tTZA=t-H
BUES (£-R) L& ARNEXREHY ANER(F) (FFXK) AR
Chongging Chayuan June 2018 Chongging 1 January 2016 20 41,000 96.8%
Aoyuan Plaza
EEXEREES ZZ-N\ERA B5E —Z-RE 20 41,000 96.8%
—A—A
Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza July 2018 Zhuhai 1 June 2016 20 69,000 99.3%
KERERES “E-N\FtA 8 ZZ-RF 20 69,000 99.3%
~NA—H
Shishan Aoyuan Plaza ~ December 2018 Foshan 1 January 2017 20 47,000 93.5%
BLUERRES —T-N\F+=A G —E—+F 20 47,000 93.5%
—HA—H
Kangwei Plaza® September 2018 Guangzhou 6 September 2018 From contract N/A N/A
effective date to
30 September 2019
RE B “Z-N\FENA B —T-N\F BEHOENA e TEm TER
NARHE BEE-T-NF
NA=Z+H
) Contract effective date represents the date on which we began (1) ERERBRHERMRERMEDERERX
to provide our commercial operational services pursuant to the EFATUMBHAREELERBENABIEMRE
relevant commercial operational services contract entered into HELRGHAE A

between us and the property developer or owner.

(2) Occupancy rate is calculated as actual leased area divided by  (2) ABEDENANT LS RS EEHEREDES

available lease area of a shopping mall as at the end of each MNERHAEEERAFTAHAEmREAESLH - —
relevant period based on our internal record. The occupancy rate FATRPHE ABXRIJERSRRE-

may be higher or lower in different periods within one year.

(3) The Group only provides Kangwei Plaza with market positioning  (3) AEBEENFRBESRETISEMLEFRBE
and business tenant sourcing services, instead of commercial MR TIRERMEELE RERRE -
operation and management services.

020 Platforms BREERTFSE

In response to demands from property developers, property ARSYERER EEX FLPMEFPAER &K
owners, residents and tenants, our Group has made efforts to SEBEEZNENLEBERTXNERELEE T
optimize our business model and improve our service quality,. REMEBMEHERARZR AEEER T —+
With the help of the Internet and mobile applications, we have FITERKEHELIGRTFE URSEFERK
built and launched 020 platforms to improve our customer JMmEJE-

experience and satisfaction in 2017.

RERELEETEEGRAT —Z—N\EH 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
020 Platforms (Continued)

Our 020 platforms primarily comprise our “Aoyuejia” (5
1% % ) Android and i0S mobile application and WeChat
official accounts. Our Group launched “Aoyuejia” (B1%{ %)
mobile application (previously known as “Jiayuan” (f£E)
and “Aoyuan Property” (BE® %)) in June 2017 which is
designed to meet the diversified demands of our residents at
the residential communities we manage. As at 31 December
2018, "Aoyuejia” (B 1% %) mobile application covered 56
residential properties managed by us, and had approximately
27,700 registered users.

Diversified Services
Traditional Chinese medicine and medical beauty services

To implement our business strategy of diversifying our service
offering to meet the evolving demands of customers, we
have set up and maintained two traditional Chinese medicine
centres and a medical beauty clinic at our managed properties.
We expect that the operation of such centres and clinic will
enable us to better understand the demand for traditional
Chinese medicine and medical beauty services and consumer
preferences at our managed properties, which will allow us
to strategise our future plan. The following sets forth certain
details of the traditional Chinese medicine centres and medical
beauty clinic we have opened:

Area
Centre Location (sq.m.)
Gk
SRV ith 2§ (EHXK)
1. A traditional Chinese Guangzhou Panyu 2,719
medicine centre Aoyuan Healthcare
Plaza
1. —RPREHRL EMEBRE 2,719
BEES
Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

R¥MOE (#)
RLEBRTFESE (&)

AEENZLERTFEEIZEBIAURIZE
HOSHEHEMEARMELIR K - AEER -
T-EFENAMLIREER] BBHEMAEREN (A
BIMERRREWE]) SERBRRMEEE
EHREFPHZTITR - R_F—-/\F+_A
=t—R TRHER] BHREMAREN R E568E M
PRERNEEYE  HA 27,7005 EMAS -

EALRE
G V' BT

REAEE S TC BRI R X1 B A
EPTHZ(nTR AKREEREEMERRL
RepmErEr oM —HEgE2m AEERA
AHEEZTORZ A EAREERAREGE
REEXBRBRAEEEENENTRLREPRL -
fem Bl E R K& AT EIIAKE D FRAF
BRORBXZANETHIE:

Opening date Type of service

e =R PR EE

Traditional Chinese medicine
consultation, complex
diseases diagnosis, elderly
care services

23 December 2018

—E-N\F B EREIERR
+-HA-+=R D BFARERS



BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Traditional Chinese medicine and medical beauty services

KBOE (2

BTALBRE (#Z)

THERRAS T

FEREXRHE (&)

Opening date

E =R

23 December 2018

Type of service

PR EE

Traditional Chinese medicine

(Continued)
Area
Centre Location (sg.m.)
[T
s iy B (FHK)
2. A traditional Chinese Guangzhou Huangpu 260
medicine centre Luogang Aoyuan
Plaza
2. —REPERL BINERHES 260
BEE5
3. A medical beauty clinic  Guangzhou Wanbo 1,800
Aoyuan International
Centre
3. —HBEDM BMEBRE 1,800

B 5 FR 0
Future Outlook

The Group plans to strengthen our position in the property
management service and commercial operational service
industries by implementing the following strategies: (i) scale
up our commercial operational service business with a focus on
cities in the PRC where we can achieve higher profit margins;
(ii) expand our property management service portfolio; (iii)
diversify our service offering to meet the evolving needs of
our customers; (iv) continue to develop and upgrade our 020
platforms to enhance our customers’ experience and facilitate
the establishment of a big data analytics platform; and (v)
develop intelligent service systems and upgrade our internal IT
system to enhance operational efficiency.

consultation, common
diseases diagnosis,
children and elderly care

services
—E-N\F hEwBH - FRERDE-
+-A=-+=R REREFARRRYE

15 March 2019 Skin treatments, micro
cosmetics and plastic

surgeries

—T-NF EE MEREEFM
ZA+EA
RRRE

AREBEGFEEBERUATEE MAKMEY
XEERBMEEELRBITRAMA: (1) E
AEXRELEMBER EHNERMENES
ERMBXROPEET: QBEARMNYEE
ERBAS: Q) ZTARMNRBEENEY
EFHSZLOTR: DBEAERARKL
BRI FaelRsSEPERIEERY ABUED
#rF & R (5)FESERE R G RTTRAEI(E

BRMAESR NRSEEME-

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

0

Scale up our commercial operational service
business with a focus on cities in the PRC where
we can achieve higher profit margins

As our asset-light model enables us to replicate our
commercial operational services efficiently, we plan
to increase our market share of the commercial
operational service industry by expanding our
total GFA under management in existing and new
markets and proactively obtaining new engagements
from independent third party property developers.
Leveraging on our established brand name and the
opportunities brought by rapid urbanisation, growth
of emerging cities and rising purchasing power of
ordinary households, we plan to put our focus on third
and fourth-tier cities in the PRC with high population
and growth potentials. We believe we will be able
to benefit from the relatively low operating costs for
providing commercial operational services in these cities
as compared to first and second-tier cities in the PRC,
thereby enabling us to achieve higher profit margins in
respect of our commercial operational services. We also
believe our strong relationship with various property
developers will help us to expand our commercial
operational service business expeditiously.

In addition, we also plan to acquire and invest in
commercial operational service providers which provide
their services in new markets where we can achieve
higher profit margins.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

(n

()

Expand our property management service portfolio

We endeavour to expand our property management
service portfolio by extending our services to various
types of properties. In addition to providing property
management services to residential properties, we had
provided property management services to various
non-residential properties such as serviced apartments,
office buildings and kindergartens during the Track
Record Period. We seek to continue to expand our
property management service portfolio to strengthen
our expertise in managing different types of properties.
In particular, we target to provide property management
services to properties such as serviced apartments,
high-end villas, office buildings, business parks, schools
and hospitals, for which we will generally be able to
charge higher property management fees than for
residential properties. We believe that by extending
our services to various types of properties, our revenue
streams can be diversified and our competitive strength
as a diversified service provider can be reinforced.
We plan to expand our property management service
portfolio through strategic acquisitions and investments
and organic growth.

Diversify our service offering to meet the evolving
needs of our customers

As our customers’ needs are constantly evolving, we
should aim to further diversify our service offering
on a continuous basis to meet their needs in order to
achieve future growth. Building on our existing service
offering, we plan to continue to increase the variety
of our services that are complementary to our property
management and commercial operational services. We
believe that a wide variety of services will enhance the
experience of property owners, residents and tenants
at our management properties, as well as allow us
to respond quickly to trends in consumer tastes and
demand, thereby benefiting property developers and
owners through an increased consumer traffic at our
managed shopping malls. Accordingly, we believe
our diversified services have great potential to create
additional value for our customers and will enable us
to capture cooperation opportunities with third-party
developers, while broadening our revenue streams in
the long run. We also plan to integrate our diversified
services into our 020 platforms for property owners,
residents, tenants and us to interact efficiently.

THERRAS T

K¥OME (#)
STALBR (&)

(2)

(3)

BEXEPYREEZRBAE

BMBOBRBEHREZERYE N
BRARMOYEEERBES BRAIE
EMFREVDEREERBIN RARE
BugBReAREALRE SFER
NREEEZFEIFETWEREADEER
AR5 o FAPT 7 SR 9 K W) 3 B IR IR %
MEANMBRTRELYENFEXE LM
#Ho LEE RMAKZWRBEALE B
mAlE BFE BEE BERMBERE
MEREDEETERS HWEENYE
BEATRRSNEEMENYEERE -
BMRA SRANKREEHESHEE
Y A8 E AT U R I 58 TR I
ERZTIERGHEANBRFED -

PIEt8E BB IE R R E AR A LR
REZRMANMEEERBGAS -

ETEEMRREEELELEF A
BIHER

HREMEFPOB LT EZL  RAK
SERESTTCRBBRARREFL
fTmERRKER - ZERRMAEOR
518 58 - Tk P51 1 42 48 4% 0 mJ 7T AP
MEEERBXELRBEORBERE-
BMRA RESETRAMEDE
XX EFPRkBEFPMER UZERMA
REEBUHBEENEHRFRBY #
MEBEBESMEBYRESHEEE AR
ESYEREBRLEIXE Rt 1
MRBRZTIERBEE RE P AERES
EEMNEXENLERMACERE =
THEBNAERE RERERAR
PIEy U as i - A IRET 8B M2 T
ERBESERMOKLERZTFE M
REXT EP HPEIEMAXED -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

(1)

Diversify our service offering to meet the evolving
needs of our customers (Continued)

To explore opportunities for providing diversified
services and assess the feasibility of providing various
services such as medical beauty services and enabling
access to online consultation service platforms operated
by third parties from our 020 platforms, we have
entered into various strategic cooperation agreements
with our strategic partners. For medical beauty services,
in August 2018, we entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with a Korean medical aesthetic service
provider with 13 branches under the brand name
"PPEUM" in Seoul, Korea focusing on both non-medical
beauty services and medical aesthetic services, pursuant
to which the service provider will provide us with
training on beauty service skills and techniques, and
advice on operation and management of medical
beauty clinics. For access to online consultation service
platforms operated by third parties, in August 2018,
we entered into two strategic cooperation agreements
with two strategic partners, pursuant to which we will
cooperate with them to enable access to their online
medical consultation service platforms, namely “Chunyu
Yisheng” (/M E 4 ) and “Health 160" (f2F160),
respectively, from our 020 platforms. In addition to the
above initiatives, we also plan to explore opportunities
for providing traditional Chinese medicine services,
elderly care services and telecommunications services. To
this end, we intend to actively explore strategic alliance,
investment and acquisition targets which provide various
which are complementary to our property management
and commercial operational services.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

()

Continue to develop and upgrade our 020
platforms to enhance our customers’ experience
and facilitate the establishment of a big data
analytics platform

We will therefore continue to develop and upgrade our
020 platforms to expand the user base and introduce
innovative functions. We intend to expand the coverage
of our mobile application “Aoyuejia” (Bt %) to all
of our managed residential properties and increase the
functionalities of such mobile application. For example,
we plan to launch a virtual butler function on our
mobile application to complement our offline butler
services which are available to our residents, and an
access function to replace physical access cards with
mobile phone access to our managed communities.
We also plan to launch a new mobile application
for retail customers in shopping malls to which we
provide commercial operational services. Such mobile
application aims to connect tenants or property owners
with retail customers by providing a centralized payment
and membership systems and creating a platform for
promotional activities. While users benefit from the
convenience brought by our 020 platforms, we obtain
users’ data on a continuous basis which enables us to
establish a big data analytics platform, which will in turn
allow us to better understand their demand, analyse
their behavioural patterns and strategise our future
development. The first-hand consumer data collected
will become valuable market intelligence for tenants or
property owners of our managed shopping malls which
can be used to strategise their sales and marketing
activities with an aim to increasing consumer traffic flow
at our managed shopping malls. Accordingly, our big
data analytics platform will serve to create additional
value of our commercial operational services for tenants
or property owners of our managed shopping malls.
In addition, our big data analytics platform will enable
us to analyse the behavioural patterns of our residents
or property owners at our managed communities,
which will in turn allow us to take various initiatives to
cater for their demand and enhance the quality of our
property management services, thereby cultivating their
loyalty and satisfaction with our services.

THERRAS T

K¥OME (#)
BTALBRE (#Z)
(4) HBEHRRARKLET FEURBE

FRBRIELEZIAXBBESFE

BPSEERBEL A RBARLETF
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BMPESIARR I BHRERAREAES
BERBAEMEMETEMERIENE
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CERMURRUBERESH FREERH
FRHRETRFTEEZFP-APAMRL
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Diversified Services (Continued)

v)

Develop intelligent service systems and upgrade
our internal IT system to enhance operational
efficiency

We are committed to using advanced technologies
to enhance customers’ experience and operational
efficiency. We intend to develop intelligent service
systems by purchasing or upgrading our equipment
and facilities at our managed properties. Such system
aims to provide a wide range of flexible secure payment
options and convenient payment experience to retail
customers, thereby enhancing their satisfaction and
loyalty. We also plan to launch intelligent car park
management system at our managed properties which
is expected to enable various functions such as payment
of parking fare by mobile phones, identification of
vacant parking slots, video recognition of car plates and
grant of parking permits to guests, thereby saving our
customers’ time and enhancing their parking experience.
We will connect such intelligent car park management
system with our 020 platforms to maximise the level of
convenience. With an aim to reducing dependency on
manual labour and lower our operational costs, we plan
to install an e-building automation (“EBA") system to
facilitate remote monitoring of our managed properties.
To further enhance our operational efficiency, we
plan to upgrade our internal IT system by setting up
a customer relationship management (“CRM") system
and upgrading our enterprise resource planning
("ERP") system. Through a CRM system, we will be
able to collect, consolidate and analyse customers’
data and records to facilitate the management of our
relationships with customers. Through an upgraded
ERP system, we will be able to maintain a standardised
management of our managed properties and facilitate
more direct management from our headquarters all
the way to each of our managed properties. We will
also be able to record all of our contracts in such
system to facilitate contract management and enable
various functions such as online approval of contracts,
monitoring of contract status and automatic reminder
of contract expiry dates. In addition, we intend to
establish an information management system to support
our provision of diversified services in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operations

The Group's revenue was mainly derived from property
management services and commercial operational services. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB618.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB182.8 million or approximately 41.9%
as compared to that of approximately RMB436.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue generated from
property management services and commercial operational
services contributed 73.2% and 26.8% to the total revenue,
respectively.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of total revenue
for the periods indicated by business segment:

THERRAS T

P4 %5 [O] B8

AEEWAFZTZREMEETERBREEXES
R -BE2—T—\F+_A=1+—HILEFE"
REBNBRKABHOARKCISSEE L REZE
—E—tF+ A=+ -—HUEFEZHARE
4360 BT MO ARK182.8F B Lz 4 L7+
419% ~ MEBTERFLHEELRBENBAS
AL 4B A T73.2% F126.8% °

TREINR PR AEZ R D 888 2 10 48 YA R
A

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

AR¥ET R % AR®ETT %

Property management MEERRSE D 453,228 73.2 317,933 72.9
service segment

Commercial operational EE3AL T Pak 165,607 26.8 118,044 27.1
service segment

Total #Et 618,835 100.0 435,977 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Property Management Services

The increase of revenue generated from property management
segment was approximately RMB135.3 million, or about
42.6%, of which the revenue generated from property
management services was approximately RMB70.9 million or
approximately 30.2% and the increase in revenue generated
from sales assistance services of approximately RMB55.0
million or approximately 125.3%. The increase of revenue
generated from property management services was mainly due
to the increase in the GFA under management from 8.6 million
sg.m. to 10.4 million sq.m.. The increase of revenue generated
from sales assistance services was mainly due to the increase
in number of properties we served from 54 for the year ended
31 December 2017 to 93 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from
the property management service segment by service category
for the periods indicated:

MO (7
MREERS

MEBERESBUWALINHOAREI135388
TCE#142.6%  H AR Y ¥ B R W AL K A
R¥70.98 8 w8 £930.2% * N $4 & & Bh R %5 Uk
AIEINH AN RESS 0B & ek 49125.3% < KRB W)
EEERGHBRAEN EBHREERERE
B86A BT KIEE104AEF K-k A
HETHERF AU AL - =B AR ERPIFTRF
NY¥BEEHEEEHE_Z—tF+_A=1+—
BEtFEMCAEZINEHZ - — \F+ A
=+ —HIEFEI3E-

TREINPIR BB RRGERE DN YEE R
AR# 2 B P EE AE MO MR A PR AR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—ZE2-N\EF —E—+F

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

AR¥ TR % AR®EFIT %

Property management services ¥ EE R 305,997 67.5 235,086 73.9
Sales assistance services 5 & ¥ B AR 1% 98,907 21.8 43,920 13.8
Community value-added @R E RS 48,324 10.7 38,927 12.3

services

Total 4t 453,228 100.0 317,933 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the GFA
under management as at the dates indicated and total revenue
for the periods indicated generated from provision of property
management services under the property management service
segment by type of property developer:

THERRAS T

MO (#7)
MEREERY (£
REINIRMERBERHBL I DORAR BHNAE

EREEBERNATHRMEEERE DA T
R B TR ARG E £ R AR ABIAR

As at/year ended 31 December

Rt=A=+-B/BZ+t=-A=+-ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—tF

GFA Revenue Revenue GFA Revenue Revenue

BERR ' ON /PN BEERE ON 'ON

("000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) % ('000 sg.m.) (RMB'000) %

(F¥HX) (AR¥TR) % (FEAX) (AREFT) %

The Parent Group and HRAEER 9,874 289,719 94.7 8,175 228,208 97.1
its related parties ot HEH e

Third-party property E-AMERER 558 16,278 5.3 391 6,878 2.9

developers
Total @it 10,432 305,997 100.0 8,566 235,086 100.0

Note: Related parties of the Parent Group include the Parent Group's
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

M SRARKERBTEESARKENRRMNE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Geographic Presence
The following map illustrates the location of the properties

under our Group’'s management and properties it contracted
to manage as at 31 December 2018:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Geographic Presence (Continued)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the GFA under
management as at the dates indicated and total revenue from
the property management service segment for the periods
indicated by geographic regions:

THERRAS T

MBEOE (7

wmEBEE(Z)

TREIIZWEMES D HRARBERNEE R
SEEE RN B EE BRSO G ELM R
WA BAAR -

As at/year ended 31 December
R+=ZA=+-B/BE+-A=t+-ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E§ e
GFA Revenue Revenue GFA Revenue Revenue
BEEHR WA WA BEHRE A O
('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) % ('000 sg.m.) (RMB'000) %
(FERFK) (AR®TR) % (FFAX) (AREFR) %
South China™ EmED 5,893 302,090 66.7 4,864 212,143 66.8
Southwest China @ FEE? 1,586 53,677 11.8 1,284 39,480 12.4
Northeast China® Rt 1,197 31,257 6.9 1,178 30,853 9.7
East China® ERE 1,206 40,695 9.0 743 19,866 6.2
Central and North China® ZhRELMED 550 25,509 5.6 497 15,591 4.9
Total Feha 10,432 453,228 100.0 8,566 317,933 100.0
Notes: T3
(1) South China comprises Guangdong Province and Guangxi (1) EHMEEEERAMNEAMAKERE
Autonomous Region.
(2) Southwest China comprises Chongqging Municipality and Sichuan  (2) FAEtEREEETRE)IE -
Province.
(3) Northeast China comprises Liaoning Province. (3) Rt EBEEESR -
(4) East China comprises Anhui, Fujian, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Shandong and ~ (4) ERMEOELH BE IH IR WREMA
Zhejiang Provinces. LA e
(5) Central and North China comprises Hunan Province, Hubei Province  (5) EhREMERFENES LA RIERT-

and Beijing Municipality.
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BTHBEMRES

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE

The increase of revenue generated from commercial
operational services segment was approximately RMB47.6
million or about 40.3%, mainly due to the increase in revenue
generated from commercial operation and management
services of approximately RMB53.0 million or approximately
106.9%, partially offset by the decrease in revenue generated
from market positioning and business tenant sourcing services
of approximately RMB5.4 million or approximately 7.9%.
The fluctuation in the revenue generated from commercial
operation and management services and market positioning
and business tenant sourcing services was primarily driven by
the number of shopping mall openings during the respective
periods. The increase of revenue generated from commercial
operation and management services was mainly due to
the increase in number of shopping mall we managed and
operated from six for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
nine for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the revenue generated from market
positioning and business tenant sourcing services was primarily
attributable to the opening of Wuhua Aoyuan Plaza (R ZEH®
E &35 ), Shaoguan Yinxiang Lingnan Aoyuan Plaza ( ERBFEN &
Zm B EES), Jiangmen Aoyuan Plaza GIFIEREES) and
Chongging Panlong No.1 shopping malls (EERESHEE) ,
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
generated from market positioning and business tenant
sourcing services was primarily attributable to (i) the opening
of Chongqging Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza (EEXRBEREES),

Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza (JX/BEREEY% ), Kangwei Plaza (FRE
%) and Foshan Aoyuan Plaza (B ILEBE &5 ) ; and (i) the
completion of a supplemental services contract for Shenyang
Aoyuan Plaza (BB REES) .
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE
(Continued)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from
commercial operational service segment by service category for

the periods indicated:

THERRAS T

BAREERYE &)

TRENNPIRARIZREERNE SN EES
AR 7% 2 B P EE AL MO MR A PR AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ART R % AREFTTT %
Commercial operation and HEELREERE 102,577 61.9 49,586 42.0
management services
Market positioning and MBS EMN REP 63,030 38.1 68,458 58.0
business tenant sourcing 128 AR 75
services
Total EET 165,607 100.0 118,044 100.0
Geographic Presence IR EE

The following map illustrates the location of the shopping
malls under our Group’s management and shopping malls it

contracted to manage as at 31 December 2018:
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Note: We entered into a termination agreement with the authorised
operator of Huizhou Ganghui Star City on 21 January 2019 upon
mutual agreement, pursuant to which we agreed to cease to
provide commercial operational services to Huizhou Ganghui Star

City.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTHBEMRES

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE
(Continued)

Geographic Presence (Continued)
The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from

the commercial operational service segment for the periods
indicated by geographic regions:

BAREERYE &)
WEEE (F)
TREIIZIE R E N AR R EE LR

B0 B EE AR :

As at/year ended 31 December

R+-ZA=+—-B 8B8FE+=-A=+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
AR T % ARETFIT %
South China® Ergi @O 126,829 76.5 100,545 85.2
Southwest China® P [E @ 32,395 19.6 17,116 14.5
Northeast China® ARG 5,435 3.3 383 0.3
East China® ERME® 948 0.6 - -
Total Bt 165,607 100.0 118,044 100.0
Notes: B 5 -

(1

South China comprises Guangdong Province and Guangxi
Autonomous Region.

(2) Southwest China comprises Chongging Municipality.

(3)

Northeast China comprises Liaoning Province.

4)

East China comprises Jiangxi Province.

COST OF SERVICES

Our cost of services primarily consist of (i) labour costs
which arose mainly from the security services, house-keeping
services and maintenance services; (ii) cleaning and gardening
expenses; (iii) utility expenses; (iv) maintenance costs; (v)
marketing and promotion expenses and (vi) materials and
consumables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COST OF SERVICES (Continued)

Our cost of services increased by approximately 42.6%
from approximately RMB287.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB410.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. This increase was
primarily attributable to (i) the increase in labour costs
from approximately RMB182.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB252.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as we employed
more employees to cope with our business expansion;
(ii) the increase in cleaning and gardening expenses
from approximately RMB50.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB80.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of our
business expansion; and (iii) the increase in maintenance
costs from approximately RMB16.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB22.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 due to the major maintenance
work performed for certain of our property management
projects during the year ended 31 December 2018.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit of
the Group was approximately RMB208.8 million, representing
an increase of RMB60.3 million or approximately 40.6% as
compared to approximately RMB148.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The gross profit margin remained
stable at 33.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
34.1% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
(i) advertising expenses; (ii) salaries and allowances for our
sales personnel; and (iii) office expenses, travelling expenses
and business development expenses. The total selling and
distribution expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately RMB1.3 million.

Our administrative expenses and other expenses primarily
consist of (i) salaries and allowances for our administrative
and management personnel in our headquarters; (ii) travelling
expenses; (iii) professional fees; (iv) late charge for tax filing;
(v) office expenses and (vi) bank charges.

THERRAS T

BR¥GREE (47)

RExAE#HZE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H8I
ifﬂ’]iﬁ/\ﬁmzzm SEBITEINL42.6% =
BHEZZ-—N\F+A=+—HLEFEMHA
REAI0NBE T - ZEMEZHK(I)S IK
$I&ﬁﬁﬁ% BEHETEBERMmAH
—+tFF+_A=ZF+—BLEFENHAR
ﬂmg25§§ﬁiﬁbmt@j>_?gﬁ\$%f A
=t+t—BLEFENHARBK252.68E& 7T (i)
BREKBERGEAYAESERMNEHEEZ-F
—+tF+ A=+ BHLEFENHARES0S
AETENEHEZE T N\F+_A=+—H
FFENHARESIH B T K (i) 4 &K
AARBE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
ABETHEEEBERNTTELETIREMEE
E-E—+F+-_A=+-—BILFEHHA
RE&16 1688 TENEHEZE-"ZT—\F+=_A°
T+ —HIEFENHARK22I9BE L.

ENRENE

HE-_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLEEE XK
EEEMNBHARKE2088EE T KEE—
T—+F+_AZ+—BLEFEZHOARE
148 5BEB T EANARKECOIEE THY
406% HE_ZT—N\F+A=+—HIF
EMEMEAEB IR BEHEE-_ZT—+F+=
A=Z+—BLEFEMNTEFE3ILA% HEFET-

HERSMAZTL R THRAX

BPMEERSHEATTIERRES
HEABZH S REM  RGNDHAERZ
ERAIREBERSEAS -BHE_Z—\F
+Z A=+ BHLEFE AERBEERDHER
TREAENAREIIBEL

BEEE (i)
N

BAMTBEAEAEMA EZBRE0) KL
MEITHEEEAR 2% € KRR (i) £
(N EXBR: (VBREBRIBBAD (v) il
NEFZ RV)IRTTER

RERFLEEEERRAT —

—NEH 31



32

Management Discussion and Analysis
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the administrative
expenses and other expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB89.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB47.1 million or approximately 112.4% as compared
to approximately RMB41.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. This increase was mainly due to the
increase in headcount of our headquarters to cope with our
business expansion and the increase in average salaries of our
employees.

OTHER INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other income of the
Group amounted to a net revenue of approximately RMB6.6
million, representing a significant increase as compared to
that of approximately RMBO0.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, which was primarily attributable to the
net exchange gain of approximately RMB5.5 million arising
from the revaluation of our bank balances denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the income tax of the
Group was approximately RMB30.2 million (2017: RMB30.5
million).

Profit for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net profit of the
Group was approximately RMB78.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB8.4 million or approximately
12.0% as compared to that of approximately RMB69.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the year ended
31 December 2018, profit attributable to equity Shareholders
was approximately RMB78.1 million, representing an increase
of 11.9% as compared to that of approximately RMB69.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the Group was
approximately RMB503.0 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB570.9 million), and the total liabilities was
approximately RMB376.8 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB459.9 million). As at 31 December 2018,
the current ratio was 1.26 (as at 31 December 2017: 1.21).

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’'s property, plant and equipment consist of
buildings, office equipment, motor vehicles and leasehold
improvements. Our property, plant and equipment increased
by approximately 127.5% to approximately RMB12.7 million
as at 31 December 2018, primarily attributable to the addition
of office equipment and the leasehold improvements of the
traditional Chinese medicine clinics and medical beauty clinics
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets represent the property management
contracts we obtained upon the acquisition of Anhui Hanlin
and Shenzhen Huazhong during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, respectively. Our intangible assets decreased
from approximately RMB3.9 million as at 31 December 2017
to approximately RMB3.0 million as at 31 December 2018,
primarily due to the amortisation of the property management
contract for the year.

Goodwill

Our goodwill represents the difference between the total
consideration for the acquisitions of Anhui Hanlin and
Shenzhen Huazhong and their respective total identifiable net
assets as at the respective acquisition dates.

Trade and Other Receivables
As at 31 December 2018, the trade and other receivables was

approximately RMB87.0 million, which is basically equal to that
of approximately RMB87.3 million as at 31 December 2017.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Amounts due from Related Parties and Fellow
Subsidiaries

The Group’s amounts due from related parties and fellow
subsidiaries decreased from approximately RMB290.1 million
as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB176.1 million
as at 31 December 2018, mainly due to the Group's effort
to collect the amounts due from related parties and fellow
subsidiaries. All the amounts due from related parties and
fellow subsidiaries of the Group as at 30 September 2018
were fully settled before the Listing Date.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2018, the trade and other payables was
approximately RMB226.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB29.7 million or 15.1% as compared to that
of approximately RMB196.5 million as at 31 December 2017,
mainly due to the increase in GFA under management and
more services subcontracted to independent third party service
providers.

Bank Borrowing

As at 31 December 2018, we had (i) outstanding bank loans
of approximately RMB1.8 million; and (ii) unutilised banking
facilities for short term financing of approximately RMB48.2
million. Our bank borrowing was credit loans, repayable within
one year from the drawdown date and carried at interest rate
of 7% per annum.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, we did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Liabilities to Assets Ratio
Liabilities to assets ratio is calculated based on the total
liabilities divided by the total assets. Liabilities to assets ratio

remained stable at 0.81 for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 0.75 for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
Asset Pledge

As at 31 December 2018, none of the assets of the Group was
pledged.

Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2019 (the “Listing”) and
issued 175,000,000 new shares. On 2 April 2019, the over-
allotment option was fully exercise and issued 26,250,000 new
shares. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing and the exercise of the
over-allotment option amounted to approximately HK$577.0
million and HK$93.7 million (approximately RMB493.1 million
and RMB80.1 million, respectively), respectively. Such proceeds
will be applied in the manner consistent with that in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2019:

o approximately 62.0%, will be used to pursue strategic
acquisition and investment opportunities to acquire
or invest in other commercial operational service and
property management service providers to achieve
our business strategies of scaling up our commercial
operational service business and expanding our property
management service portfolio;

o approximately 10.0%, will be used to pursue selective
strategic acquisition and investment opportunities to
acquire or invest in service providers which provide
various services that are complementary to our property
management services and commercial operational
services, such as traditional Chinese medicine services,
medical beauty services, elderly care services and
telecommunications services, to achieve our business
strategy of diversifying our service offering to meet the
evolving needs of our customers;

o approximately 12.0%, will be used to continue to
develop and upgrade our 020 platforms;

o approximately 6.0%, will be used to develop intelligent
service systems and upgrade our internal IT system;

o approximately 10.0%, will be used for our working
capital and general corporate purposes.
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EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 3,278 employees.
The staff cost was approximately RMB288.1 million in 2018.
The Group regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of
its employees according to the relevant market practice
and individual performance of the employees. Pursuant to
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group provides
contributions to social insurance (including pension insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity
insurance and occupational injury insurance) and housing
provident funds for our employees in the PRC.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
have any significant acquisitions and disposals.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any major
investments.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Miao Sihua (B E S 4 ), aged 54, was appointed as a
director ("Director”) of the Company on 6 June 2018 and
was redesignated as an executive Director of the Company
on 9 July 2018 and responsible for supervising the overall
management and operation of our Group. Mr. Miao has been
serving as the president of our Group since 16 September
2013 and has been appointed as a director of our certain
subsidiaries. He was a vice president of China Aoyuan and
had been appointed as a director of certain members of
China Aoyuan. Mr. Miao has over five years of experience in
property management and commercial operation management.
Prior to joining China Aoyuan, Mr. Miao worked as a general
manager of FRMTEEEFHEEIEGR Q5 (in English, for
identification purpose only, Zhongtian Urban Group Business
Management Company Limited), a company principally
engaged in the commercial property investment, commercial
real estate management, where he was primarily responsible
for overall management and operation of the company from
July 2012 to August 2013.

Mr. Miao received a bachelor’s degree in #tZhiE[E B 2238 T2
(in English, for identification purpose only, Heating Ventilation
and Air Conditioning Engineering) from [ X & (in English,
for identification purpose only, Tong Ji University) in the
PRC in September 1987 and a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the Asia Metropolitan University in
Malaysia in December 2017.

Mr. Miao had received the following awards over the years:

o Mall China Shopping Centre Outstanding Professional
Leader by Mall China;

. China Chain Gold Unicorn Prize ( Fr B8 $8 & BB 58 ) -
the BEST CEO by China Chain Management Summit
Organizing Committee (FBIEHEHL LB SHEST) ;
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

o 2014 Commercial Real Estate Year Memory of
Guangzhou Dream Cast — 2014 Guangzhou Commercial
Real Estate Outstanding Manager (20147 ¥ i E F &
HEREeEIMN- 204FENEEMELSHMELEAN)
by Winshang.com (& #8) and 21st Century Chinese
Commercial Real Estate Institute (21142 fb B g ¥ th &=
b ) ; and

o 2015 China Experience Commercial Real Estate Pilot
Award — China Experience Commercial Real Estate
Innovative Character (20154 b B0 82 55 =\ 7 2 4 &= B Ml
- PREEBAEHEEIFTAY) by Winshang.com (m
#4) and 21st Century Chinese Commercial Real Estate
Institute (211 42 R B X s E#F 7T B )

Mr. Tao Yu (5L 4 ), aged 25, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 6 June 2018 and was re-designated as
an executive Director of the Company on 9 July 2018 and
responsible for overseeing the strategy formulation and
management of the capital operation and business acquisitions
of our Group. Mr. Tao worked in Aoyuan Property Group
(Australia) Pty Ltd., a subsidiary of China Aoyuan, as a finance
analyst primarily responsible for the management of the key
financial debt facilities providers from September 2016 to April
2018; and a capital transaction manager primarily responsible
for the daily operation and strategic advice on business
acquisition from February 2017 to April 2018. Mr. Tao received
a bachelor’s degree in Project Management from Nanjing
Auditing University in the PRC in June 2015 and a master’s
degree in Commerce in Finance and Business Analytics from
The University of Sydney in Australia in October 2017. Mr. Tao
Yu is the son-in-law of Mr. Guo Ziwen, who is the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the younger brother of
Mr. Guo Zining.
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Biographical Details of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Zining (R = £ 4 ), aged 57, is the chairman of
our Board and was appointed as a Director of the Company on
13 December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 9 July 2018. Mr. Guo is also the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and the member of
our Remuneration Committee. Mr. Guo has been serving China
Aoyuan for over 20 years and is currently an executive director,
a vice chairman and chief executive officer of China Aoyuan as
well as a director in certain subsidiaries of China Aoyuan, and
he is primarily responsible for commercial property investment,
development and operation, and leads the party committee,
trade union and corporate culture of China Aoyuan. In
December 2006, he obtained a master's degree in Business
Administration from City University of Macau (formerly known
as Asia International Open University (Macau)) in Macau. In
July 2015, he obtained a certificate of postgraduate doctor in
Business Administration from Beijing Normal University ( 1t 5l
FKEZ) in the PRC. In November 2015, he obtained a doctoral
degree in Business Administration from Nueva Ecija University
of Science and Technology in Philippines. In September 2016,
he obtained a post-doctoral certificate from the California
State University Monterey Bay in California. During the period
from May 2016 to April 2017, he participated in a topic of
“Research on Peking University — China Brand Value (it R K2
R SRR EEHRTZE) 7, and independently wrote a postdoctoral
thesis on “Research on the Business Operational Strategy of
Aomaijia Cross-Border E-commerce ( (RERBERBEREALE R
B 2E) ) “, and therefore received a certificate from Peking
University China Sustainable Development Research Centre
(kR KREFRHFEFRPFTRA L) in May 2017. Mr. Guo has
also been an external tutor of Peking University HSBC Business
School EDP Centre (dt R A E2 & EE I 5K E LM B (EDP)
i») since November 2017, and is currently a domestic visiting
scholar in the faculty of Economics in Peking University in the
PRC. Mr. Guo is the elder brother of Mr. Guo Ziwen, who is
the controlling shareholder of the Company and the father-in-
law of Mr. Tao Yu.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EREENE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chen Zhibin (PR F W % &), aged 37, was appointed
as a Director of the Company on 6 June 2018 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director of the Company on
9 July 2018. Mr. Chen is currently a vice president and head
of finance centre of China Aoyuan and primarily responsible
for the overall capital markets operation and financial
management of China Aoyuan. Prior to joining China Aoyuan,
Mr. Chen served as a general manager of finance department
of Fantasia Group (China) Company Limited, a subsidiary of
Fantasia Holdings Group Company Limited whose shares have
been listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1777) since
November 2009 and principally engaged in the provision of
property development in the PRC, where he was primarily
responsible for the financial management of the company
from October 2012 to May 2014. During the period from July
2004 to January 2012, Mr. Chen served in Deloitte Guangzhou
Office and was primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising daily operations of audit engagements, where his
last position thereof was the audit and assurance manager.
Mr. Chen received a bachelor’s degree in Finance from the Sun
Yat-Sen University (2 LLIKXE2) in the PRC in June 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement GXEE L 4£E), aged 63, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 February 2019. He is primarily responsible for supervising
and giving independent judgement to our Board. He is also
the chairman of our Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and the member of our Nomination Committee.

Mr. Hung had served Deloitte China for 31 years where he
had assumed various leadership roles before he served as the
chairman of Deloitte China from June 2014 to May 2016. He
retired as the chairman of Deloitte China with effect from
June 2016 (the “Retirement”). When Mr. Hung was working
with Deloitte China, he had assumed various leadership roles,
including, the office managing partner of Deloitte Shenzhen
Office and Guangzhou Office. He was also a member of the
China Management Team of Deloitte China, and became the
southern audit leader and the deputy managing partner of
the southern region in the PRC (including the regions of Hong
Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Changsha and Xiamen)
afterwards.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Hung has become an honorary member of the Shenzhen
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He has
served as a consultant of the Guangzhou Institute of Certified
Public Accountants from August 2004 to July 2014 and also
was a member of the Political Consultative Committee of
Luohu District, Shenzhen, in the PRC, from January 2006 to
December 2012. After his Retirement, the Ministry of Finance
in the PRC (FR2E AR ZEFM BB B #5) appointed him as an
expert consultant in June 2016.

Mr. Hung has/had served as a director of the following listed
companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange:

o an independent non-executive director of LT Commercial
Real Estate Limited (stock code: 112) from 24 February
2017 to 3 March 2017, a non-executive director
thereof from 3 March 2017 to 30 June 2017 and
an independent non-executive director thereof from
30 June 2017 to 30 September 2018;

o an independent non-executive director of Gome Finance
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as
Sino Credit Holdings Limited) (stock code: 628) since
31 October 2016;

o an independent non-executive director of Zhongchang
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Henry Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 859)
since 12 January 2018;

o a non-executive director of High Fashion International
Limited (stock code: 608) since 1 December 2017;

o an independent non-executive director of Sheng Ye
Capital Limited (stock code: 8469) since 19 June 2017,
and

o an independent non-executive director of SMI Holdings

Group Limited (stock code: 198) from 16 January 2017
to 15 March 2017 and re-designated as a non-executive
director thereof with effect from15 March 2017 to
28 February 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EREENE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Li Zijun (Z=FEE4XE), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 February 2019.
He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgement to our Board. He is also the member
of each of our Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Dr. Li is currently the chief of the East Medical District and the
head physician of Gastroenterology in Guangdong General
Hospital (B A AR EBL), and a part-time professor at
Southern Medical University (F8 5 BRI K2 ) as well. He
possesses more than 30 years of extensive experience as a
doctor and is an expert in medical treatment and endoscopic
treatment of chronic stomach, intestinal, liver and pancreatic
diseases. He had been qualified to practice as a chief physician
of Internal Medicine (AEIE/AEAD) since March 1995 and
a deputy chief physician of Gastroenterology (3E1k AEI8I £
f£) since December 1999, and has been a chief physician of
Gastroenterology (JB{E AR} £ {E) since February 2006. He
received a Guangdong Science and Technology Award (B X
LBRIE T4 ) (Level Two) for his research on experimental
study on the mechanism and prevention of intestinal mucosal
inflammatory injury (BZ R BE K B E KB BN ER )
by Guangdong People’s Government ( EEE ARKIT) in the
PRC in July 2009. Dr. Li obtained a master’'s degree in Internal
Medicine (IR ®I£) from Tongji Medical College (B ERI K
E) in the PRC in June 1992, and a doctor’s degree in Internal
Medicine ( AEIE:) by Sun Yat-Sen Medical University ( 47 [L &
K E) in the PRC in July 2011. Dr. Li has engaged in clinical
work for over 30 years, and published a number of papers and
has extensive clinical and teaching experience in the field of
gastroenterology.

Mr. Wang Shao ( E#% 4 ), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 February 2019. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and giving independent
judgement to our Board. He is also the member of each of our
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wang has been serving Guangdong Real Estate Association
(BEREEMETEMNE) since October 1994, and is
currently the president where he is responsible for its overall
management, including strategic planning, public relations and
presiding the council meeting. Since August 2017, Mr. Wang
has been serving as an external supervisor of A-Living Services
Company Limited (JE/E %5 £ )5 R % I BB 2 &) whose
shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3319) and a reputable property management services provider
in China, where he is responsible for supervising the board
and the senior management of the company. He is a special
supervisor of Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation Bureau (&
REMAHEBIFEEEE), an executive director ( #1512
%) of China Real Estate Association (FEIEMEXERE ), the
president (#t &) of Guangdong Southern Real Estate Magazine
(EREAHBE) #istt) and an adjunct professor ( & &
##) of Guangdong Construction Vocational and Technical
College (BREFZBEHMZF) . He was also honored as
the Outstanding Member in the National Real Estate Industry
(2B EMETEESHEIIEE) in May 2014. He obtained
a diploma from Sun Yat-Sen University (A [I X&) in the PRC
majoring in real estate brokerage and management in June
1995, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in Administration
Management from the same university in July 1999.

Mr. Wang was a director of E /N %% & AR 2 7l (in English,
for identification purpose only, Guangzhou Xie Zhi Consultant
Company Limited), which was incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability and principally engaged in the provision of
information system and marketing research services and was
deregistered on 13 March 2008. As confirmed by Mr. Wang,
such company was solvent at the time when deregistered on
a voluntary basis and there was no wrongful act on his part
leading to the deregistration and he is not aware of any actual
or potential claim that has been or will be made against him
as a result of such deregistration.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge,
information and belief of our Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, there are no other matters that need to
be brought to the attention of our Shareholders in connection
with the appointment of our Directors, and there is no
information relating to our Directors that is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”), including matters relating to directorships held by
our Directors in any public companies, the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years immediately preceding the date of this
prospectus.
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

SREEARRAFIHEGN

Mr. Xu Xiaodong (#RBER 5L 4 ) , aged 35, is the chief financial
officer of our Group and director of our Financial Management
Centre and responsible for the management of capital and
financial operation of our Group. Mr. Xu joined our Group
on 28 November 2016 and has also been appointed as a
director of our certain subsidiaries. Prior to joining our Group,
he worked as a chief financial officer of Kingdee Medical
Software Technology Company Limited (& % 28 & 8 (5 &l &
BMRAA), a company principally engaged in the provision
of Internet medical software development and information
technology consultancy services, where he was primarily
responsible for the overall capital markets operation and
financial management from June 2016 to November 2016; and
an associate at investment banking division in The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, one of the leading
banks in Hong Kong in the provision of comprehensive range
of banking and related financial services, where he was
primarily responsible for serving corporate clients in terms
of capital market and financial advisory business from June
2010 to October 2014. Mr. Xu received a bachelor’'s degree
in Science from the London School of Economics and Political
Science in the University of London in July 2007 in the United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lei Yiqun (EZEE5E4E), aged 38, is the executive vice
president of the Group and responsible for the management
of the daily operation of the commercial operational services
business, and also participated in the management of our
property management services business. Mr. Lei joined our
Group on 27 February 2015 and has also been appointed
as a director of our certain subsidiaries. Prior to joining
our Group, he worked as a business development manager
of EIFEMEEABM AR (in English, for identification
purpose only, Wuxi Longhu Real Estate Company Limited), a
company principally engaged in the provision of the property
management services, where he was primarily responsible for
the business development and marketing management from
June 2011 to January 2013; a deputy general manager of &
EWEETE AR QA (in English, for identification purpose
only, Wanda Commercial Management Company Limited), a
company principally engaged in the provision of the property
management services, where he was primarily responsible for
the management and operation of the company from February
2010 to June 2011. Mr. Lei received a bachelor’'s degree in
Business Management from the Technical College of Zhuzhou
(%KM TEPT) in the PRC in June 2005. Mr. Lei was granted
the Commercial Real Estate Golden Awards as Outstanding
Leader for the year 2017-2018 (2017-2018%4F J& i 2 I = & &
BR7EFEMESBHHEZ AY) by Winshang.com (RmEA) in
April 2018.
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. Jiang Yue (Z385t 4 ), aged 47, is the vice president of
our Group and general manager of our Property Management
Division and responsible for the management of the daily
operation of our property management services business,
and also participated in the management of our commercial
operational services business. Mr. Jiang joined our Group on
22 June 2015 and has also been appointed as a director of our
certain subsidiaries. Mr. Jiang has over 15 years of experience
in property management. Prior to joining our Group, during
the period from April 2002 to June 2015, Mr. Jiang worked
at ©EYWEAFR AT (in English, for identification purpose
only, Jinbi Property Company Limited), a subsidiary of China
Evergrande Group whose shares are currently listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333)
principally engaging in the provision of property management
services, where his last position held was the chairman and
was primarily responsible for the overall management and
operation. Mr. Jiang received a master’s degree in Business
Management in the Asia Metropolitan University in Malaysia
in December 2017. Mr. Jiang was awarded as the China
Outstanding Professional Manager ( FF B0 4 £ B 22 45 12
A)on the 7th China Professional Managers International
Conference in 2016 (2016F &+ & B 8 Z &1 A BB R
K& ) organised by China Professional Manager Consultancy
(M E R KR AL L) in September 2016. He was also
honoured as 2015-2016 Guangdong Province Top 10 Property
Management Elite (2015-2016 EREAWERBEETEAY)
by China Enterprise News Network (R EIZ2#E4), Asia
Pacific Economic Times (25 A48 E R {4t ) and Guangdong
Academy of Social Sciences Enterprise Research Institute ( ER
B EeRIERDEMEFR) and 2014-2016 Outstanding Elite
in Guangdong Property Management Industry ([ EH & %) %
EIRITH20145F -2016F £ tH A %) by Guangdong Property
Management Industry Institute (BEREWEEEITEHE) in
July 2016 and September 2016, respectively.
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

SREEARRAFIHEGN

Mr. Fu Kuan (Ff &% %), aged 40, is the deputy general
manager of our Property Management Division and
Commercial Operation Division and responsible for engineering
management of our property management services business
and commercial operational services business. Mr. Fu joined
our Group on 12 February 2014. Prior to joining our Group,
during the period from September 2012 to November 2013,
he worked as a general manager of the engineering property
management department of FRMFEEERMH AR QA (in
English, for identification purpose only, Zhongtian Urban
Group Company Limited), a company which is principally
engaged in the commercial property investment, commercial
real estate management, where he was primarily responsible
for the management and operation of property development
projects. Mr. Fu received a bachelor’'s degree in Electrical
Engineering and Automation from the EE T 2T (in
English, for identification purpose only, Technical College
of Chongqing) (currently known as Chongging University of
Technology (ZEEE¥E T KE)) in the PRC in July 2000.

Ms. Chen Rong (& Z ), aged 44, is the assistant
general manager of our Property Management Division
and Commercial Operation Division, and deputy director of
our Financial Management Division and responsible for the
financial management of our property management services
business and commercial operational services business.
She is also serving as a director of our certain subsidiaries.
Ms. Chen has extensive experience in the accounting and
financial management. She served as a manager of the finance
department in China Aoyuan from August 2006 to October
2013 and was responsible for accounting and financial
management of China Aoyuan. Prior to joining China Aoyuan,
during the period from February 1998 to June 2004, she
worked as a manager of the finance department in Guangzhou
Hesheng Junjing Real Estate Company Limited (&N & 4 B
SEMESERADA), a company principally engaged in the
property management and real estate development. Ms. Chen
received a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the & /&%
KE (in English, for identification purpose only, Guangdong
Ocean University) in the PRC in January 2007.
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

Ms. Jin Yuru (£ 2481% %) (formerly known as Ms. Jin Limei
(£33 =+)), aged 42, is the assistant general manager of
our Property Management Division and Commercial Operation
Division and responsible for the administrative and human
resources management of our property management services
business and commercial operational services business. Ms. Jin
joined our Group on 12 February 2014 and she had been
serving China Aoyuan for over 10 years. During the period
from June 2006 to February 2014, she was an assistant
manager of EMNBEEELEEE AR 2 A (in English,
for identification purpose only, Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets
Management Company Limited) and primarily responsible
for administrative and human resource management of the
company. From January 2004 to May 2006, she was a deputy
officer of Guangzhou Aoyuan Commercial Group Company
Limited (ERRBEERERmEBABR AA) (formerly known
as EMEYPERBIEERFRAAE) and primarily responsible
for administrative and human resource management of
the company. Prior to joining China Aoyuan, she worked
as an auditor of EBEEHEIHFEE AR A A (in English,
for identification purpose only, Lianyungang Dongliang
Harbour Company Limited), a company principally engaged
in the provision of lease and maintenance of port facilities,
equipment and machinery, where she was responsible for
the auditing affairs of the company from December 1998
to January 2004. Ms. Jin received a bachelor’s degree in
Corporate Management from the Nanjing University of Science
and Technology (F§ &3 T X&) in the PRC in October 1999.

None of our senior management held any directorship in
any public company the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the three years
immediately preceding the date of this prospectus.
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

SREEARRAFIHEGN

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Yan Winnie (R58fRZ 1), was appointed as
the company secretary of our Company on 14 August 2018
and is responsible for matters in relation to reporting and
disclosure of the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules. She is a director of corporate services division of Tricor
Services Limited (“Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specialising in integrated business, corporate and
investor services. She has over 25 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial field and has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Yuen is
currently the company secretary of the following five listed
companies on the Stock Exchange: China First Chemical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2121), Genes Tech Group
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 8257), OneForce
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1933), WuXi AppTec Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 2359), and Shanghai Junshi Biosciences Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 1877). Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. Yuen was a
manager of the company secretarial department of Ernst &
Young in Hong Kong. Ms. Yuen is a chartered secretary and
a fellow of both of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since October 2012.
Ms. Yuen is a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from
HKICS. Ms. Yuen graduated from Lingnan College (currently
known as Lingnan University) in Hong Kong in January 1993.
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PANYU AOYUAN PLAZA

Panyu Aoyuan Plaza commenced operation in December
2012 and is our first commercial operational service
project. It is located in the centre of Panyu, Guangdong
and is conveniently accessible via various highways
and Guangzhou metro. It features a wide range of
world-renowned products as well as top domestic
designer brands. Its one-stop service has made the
shopping mall a leading player in the local market.

The contracted area and occupancy rate of Panyu
Aoyuan Plaza were approximately 140,000 sq.m. and
90.9%, respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

Panyu Aoyuan Plaza B ERERES

JIANGMEN AOYUAN PLAZA

Jiangmen Aoyuan Plaza is located in Jiangmen,
Guangdong and is adjacent to several populated
residential and business communities. Jiangmen Aoyuan
Plaza commenced operation in December 2017. We
have positioned Jiangmen Aoyuan Plaza as a shopping
destination for families offering a variety of consumer
products as well as a wide selection of restaurants.
We have also designed several theme zones within
Jiangmen Aoyuan Plaza, each representing different
themed characteristics of consumer goods and services,
including, among other things, children’s playground
together with educational services and children’s goods
retail stores, sporting goods retail stores and gyms,
and restaurants and cinema for the entertainment
experience.

Project Overview
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Project Overview
HEHEE

The contracted area and occupancy rate of Jiangmen
Aoyuan Plaza were approximately 105,000 sq.m. and
80.5%, respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

ZHUHAI AOYUAN PLAZA

Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza is located in Zhuhai, Guangdong,
and commenced operation in July 2018. It possesses
enhanced shopping environment and artistic elements
in decoration such as parterre and various lighting
devices. Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza attracts tenants in general
retail, sporting goods retail, education and training,
entertainment, and restaurant and food services, many
of which are first introduced in Zhuhai.

The contracted area and occupancy rate of Zhuhai
Aoyuan Plaza were approximately 69,000 sgq.m. and
99.3%, respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza ¥}/BRERES
CHONGQING CHAYUAN AOYUAN PLAZA

Chongqing Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza is located in
Chongging and commenced operation in June 2018.
We have positioned Chongging Chayuan Aoyuan
Plaza as a community shopping mall providing retail
consumers with a relaxing social space. Chongqging
Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza provides traditional shopping,
supermarket, gym, dining and recreational facilities.

The contracted area and occupancy rate of Chongging
Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza were approximately 41,000
sq.m. and 96.8%, respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

N—ZE-NE+_A=+—H IR
B & 15 5] 49T & 49 4105,000°F 75 K - &
ABE R #)3%80.5% ©

hBRERS

KEREESLENEREKEN R
“E-N\FLARKREL - HENETE
MRE LERSERAREBFRNHS
HERTEMTR - HKBREES RS

LTRTE BEARTE HENRE
F RN R ER MR MRS T EOHE
B P ERERIKE -

RZEB—-NE+_A=+—H0 KER
B &5 Q) E &4 569,000 75K HE A
EY R 493%99.3% °

Chongging Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza EEFEREES

q -

EBZXERERS

ERREREBESLENREET K
Z-NFRARKEL HMBEEXR
BREESEUALEREYESE /T
EHEERAERNUERER -BER
BRERSREEREYD Bm 5
7 ERRRERE-

RZEB—-NE+_A=+—H0 FEX
B B EES ] A mE a4 A41,000F 75K -
HEABTE#)#£96.8% °



JIY]I SHANGCHENG PLAZA

Jiyi Shangcheng Plaza is located in Meixian, Guangdong
and is expected to commence operation in October
2020. Jiyi Shangcheng Plaza will be located in the
centre of Meixian, and adjacent to the arterial roads
of Meixian. We position Jiyi Shangcheng Plaza as a
community shopping mall providing retail consumers
with a relaxing social space. The contracted area of Jiyi
Shangcheng Plaza is approximately 52,000 sg.m..

JIYI SHANGCHENG PLAZA % — 5 ES
DUYUN AOYUAN PLAZA

Duyun Aoyuan Plaza is located in Duyun, Guizhou,
the capital of Buyi and Miao Autonomous Prefecture,
and is expected to commence operation in October
2019. Duyun Aoyuan Plaza will be located in the centre
of Duyun, and is conveniently accessible from other
autonomous prefectures. Duyun Aoyuan Plaza is an
urban complex and a key project supported by the local
governments. The contracted area of Duyun Aoyuan
Plaza is approximately 14,000 sg.m..

Project Overview
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AOYUAN LIANFENG STATE

With a GFA of approximately 360,000 sq.m., Aoyuan
Lianfeng State is adjacent to Panyu Lianhuashan scenic
spot. It is a benchmark project for high-end case
service projects and the pioneer in Platinum Plus Service
System, which offers premium value-added services
from six aspects, such as respect, security, life, health,
home living and convenience.

Aoyuan Lianfeng State EREZ i E1E

XINHUA TOWN, YINGDE AOYUAN
INTERNATIONAL RESORT

With an area of 8,000 mu, Yinghong Town, Yingde
City is a brand new cultural tourism resort complex
which covers themed entertainment, British tea culture,
resort hotel and hot spring experience and integrates
production, life and ecology “Organic Integration”.
It has several segments, such as “theme park”, “the
Yinghong town”, “the DoubleTree Hot Spring Resort by
Hilton Hotel” and “the Karst Forest Ranch”, which are
driven by the dual force from industry and tourism to
develop a diversified theme entertainment destination
in south China.
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10.

NINGBO AOYUAN LAKE BAY

With a total GFA of approximately 300,000
sq.m., Ningbo Aoyuan Lake Bay covers an area of
approximately 120,000 sg.m.. It consists of landscape-
view high-rise residences with a GFA area ranging
from 89 to 132 sgq.m. and premium garden houses
with a GFA area ranging from 118 to 128 sg.m.. In
addition, the community is equipped with 12 classes of
kindergartens and ancillary retail units.

Ningbo Aoyuan Lake Bay %) B8 [B] £ i /&

ZHANJIANG BODA MANSION

Located at the intersection of Jinkang West Road and
Jinchuan Road, Zhanjiang Boda Mansion is developed by
Zhanjiang Boda Property Development Co., Ltd. with a
total planned area of 48 mu, which is a high-end quality
community with low density and high greening rate,
and is comprised of residential properties, British-style
commercial streets and landscaping facilities. The park
provides a full spectrum of British-style aristocratic
housekeeping services and is equipped with intelligent
system to build strict security system to provide
respected living experience and enjoyment to property
owners.

10

Project Overview
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11.
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AOYUAN CULTURAL TOURISM
COMPLEX-IMPRESSION OF LINGNAN IN
SHAOGUAN

Aoyuan Cultural Tourism Complex-Impression of
Lingnan in Shaoguan is located by the Wujiang River in
Shaoguan. The total floor space is about 680,000 sg.m,
of which the area of residential properties is 400,000
sg.m. Relying on the profound Buddhist cultural
resources and rich landscape resources in the local area,
the project will become the first characteristic cultural
tourism complex in Southern China that integrates
Buddhist culture, tourism, hotels, business and
residences.

Aoyuan Cultural Tourism Complex:-Impression of Lingnan in Shaoguan

12.

BEXLIREN « BHAHRER
PANYU AOYUAN

Panyu Aoyuan established the first community Party
Committee in Guangdong Province and the second
in the country with non-public enterprises as main
members. Panyu Aoyuan organizes party members
to actively participate in community management
and service, and forms a new model of community
management integrated with the community Party
Committee, developers, neighborhood committees,
property management companies, property owner
committees and community life service organizations
(“Six in One"”) through party committees and party
building. On 1 July 2013, the Panyu Community Party
and a comprehensive service platform for residents were
established to provide one-stop services.
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The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to
safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of
the Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Company has also in place a corporate governance
framework and has established a set of policies and procedures
based on the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance
and exercise proper oversight on business conduct and affairs
of the Company.

As the Company was not yet listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange until the Listing Date, the CG Code was not
applicable to the Company during the period under review.
The Board is of the view that since the Listing Date up to the
date of this report (the “"Reporting Period”), the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Corporate Governance Report
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

As the Company was not yet listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange until the Listing Date, the Model Code
was not applicable to the Company during the period under
review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company, and whether the Director is spending sufficient time
performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, consisting of 2
executive Directors, namely Mr. Miao Sihua and Mr. Tao VYu,
2 non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman)
and Mr. Chen Zhibin, and 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun and
Mr. Wang Shao.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Biographical Information” on
pages 37 to 43 of the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BEXHRETH

ARRB R TR R ERI10PTE 0 LT EITA
EEETESFRINRESTR ([REFR]) -

AR AR T B HIAT A R ER R PR £
BURAEST RN BB A I B AR AR R

EEE

RRTFH—
BAKENER %&Hiﬁ% REFE I
MR EN S IE L FBURE

EeRRNEFERE EFTREE
IAZR 2 7]

EXeREHRNESFRETHEARRNBER
FHABERMAREEERARASERITERE -

EEEEMX

EXefRA7REFER BRBNTES (A
HBEREMBTRLE) 22FRNTES (A
BEELE (XFE) MRERLELE) M3BBEILIEHA
TEE (AEERE FTTRBERTHRAL) -

ERNBEAHBRRBE-T—N\F+= 7
=t BILFRFRENEBEN [EERER
5~

S ek BB R



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a
year involving active participation, either in person or through
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

The Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2018, and was only
listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. During the
Reporting Period, one Board meeting was held, at which the
Directors approved, among other things, the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman should hold
meetings with independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors during the year for compliance
with the revised code provision which took effect from 1
January 2019.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of Chairman is by Mr. Guo Zining and he provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board. The Company does not at present
have any officer with the title “chief executive officer.

Independent non-executive Directors

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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ERELHE

EEE® 2
EESSMBRESHERS

THEEeedREEs 2L RTOR BERE
SEBETFEANAEG2EAZHETGRH -

RBEE-_ZT—-N\F+_A=t—BHILFE £Q
AW AREBRM LT BER EHHESERR
rEm -RBEHRE ARA AR - REFTSE
O EEAES L E (AP e AKBEEE—F
—NFT A=+ HILFENFEEE-

BREREFESRIN TRENFRNEFL IR
TEFENTUBEMESTHENGH NETH
“E-NF-A-BREMBNKER TRIE

EIFRRITHAR

TRBGAIFEEEET WREHEEREL
BEESFEMNARERENEE AR RHRRILE
ERAB AR [TTBAREL Bt -

BIUFRTESE

REERESHE E22 - BENALMHRAAEA
ZEEL=ZRBIUFHTEFTNER MEFH
MRTEFTREEFTEREN =02 ULER
HP—2BUFRTESRAREENERER
e RERMHEEREER.

ARBIEWEIZBUIFATESRE EMARAE
3BGEB I A B AR ER
FRERE -ARAARBABBEULIFNTESTH
RIBIANL

RERELEETEEGRAT —Z—N\EH 5§57



Corporate Governance Report
LEETLIRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three year commencing from the Listing Date,
subject to renewal after the expiry of their current term.

All the Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings.
Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three of a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides
that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures
that sound internal control and risk management systems are
in place.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management (Continued)

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in
the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations. The independent
non-executive Directors will also be able to provide an
impartial, external opinion to protect the interests of our
public Shareholders.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction shall
be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant
topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

Prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given the training
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate
governance and regulatory updates and relevant reading
materials including compliance manual/legal and regulatory
updates/seminar handouts have been provided to the Directors
for their reference and studying.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement
(as Chairman), Dr. Li Zijun and Mr. Wang Shao. Mr. Hung Ka
Hai Clement, the chairman of the Audit Committee, with the
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The main
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, oversee our audit process and
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by our
Board.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on 18 March
2019, no Audit Committee meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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LEETLIRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a
meeting on 25 March 2019 to review, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018, the annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function, appointment of external auditors and relevant
scope of works and, and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, being
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung
Ka Hai Clement (as Chairman), Dr. Li Zijun, Mr. Wang Shao
and one non-executive Director, namely Mr Guo Zining.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangement.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on 18 March

2019, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held during
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee met once to consider
the relevant matters regarding/to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by
band are set out in note 9 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, being
one non-executive Director, namely Mr Guo Zining (Chairman)
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Hung Ka Hai Clement (as Chairman), Dr. Li Zijun, Mr. Wang
Shao.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the appointment and
removal of our Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as well as
factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
and maintaining diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on 18 March
2019, no Nomination Committee meeting was held during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
of the Board is maintained and has not set any measurable
objective implementing the Board diversity policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which
sets out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain
diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversify at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee is committed to diversify at all levels and will
consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, length
of services and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be made on meritocracy and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, with due regard for
the benefits of the diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural, educational
background, ethnicity and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and agree annually all measureable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including overall management and strategic development,
human resources, information technology, accounting
and financial management, risk management, corporate
governance and evaluation of properties and assets. They
obtained degrees in various majors including business
administration, project management, commerce in finance
and business analytics, medicine and heating ventilation and
air conditioning engineering. We have three independent
non-executive Directors with different industry backgrounds,
representing more than one third of the members of our
Board. Furthermore, our Board has a wide range of age,
ranging from 25 years old to 63 years old. Taking into account
our existing business model and specific needs as well as
the different backgrounds of our Directors, at present, the
composition of our Board satisfies our Board Diversity Policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revision that may be
required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which
sets out the selection criteria and process and the Board
succession planning considerations in relation to nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for
assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to the
Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to
the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise — the
candidate should possess the skills, knowledge,
experience, qualification and professional expertise
which are relevant to the operation of the Group

o Diversity — The candidate should be considered with due
regard to the diversity perspectives set out in the board
diversity policy of the Company
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

o Commitment — The candidate should be able to devote
sufficient time to attend the board meetings and
participate in induction, training and other relevant
activities.

o Standing - the candidate must satisfy the Board and
the Stock Exchange that he/she has the character,
experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate
a standard of competence commensurate with the
relevant position as a director of the Company

o Independence - the candidate to be nominate as an
independent non-executive Directors must satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures
for the selection and appointment of new Directors and
re-election of Directors at general meetings. During the
Reporting Period, there was no change in the composition of
the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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ERELWE

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings since the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report are set out in the table below:

Board
Name of Director R Exg
Mr. Miao Sihua HEELE 11
Mr. Tao Yu BTEE n
Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman) IELE(LE) 17
Mr. Chen Zhibin BREMW T E 11
Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement HEEELE n
Dr. Li Zijun FFERE n
Mr. Wang Shao FREE 1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the Reporting
Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines in relation to,
among others, corporate governance, risk evaluation and
management, anti-corruption, disclosure of information,
confidentiality and financial reporting in order to achieve
effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

All departments conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business
of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that control policies are properly complied with by
each department.

The management, in coordination with department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment
plans, and monitor the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings
and the effectiveness of the systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well
as the management report and the internal audit findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls,
for the year ended 31 December 2018, and considered that
such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review
also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function
and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its
findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties

relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 91 to 97.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and
the reasons why the Board has taken a different view from
that of the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB1,880,000 and RMB3,880,000 respectively. An analysis
of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out below:

Service Category

Audit Services
Non-audit Services
— Initial public offering of the Group

BR %% 38 51
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TR
—RAEEHERAFEE

Corporate Governance Report
LETLIRE

EFHMBERRARENRE &)

NARVBY B B RERIELRENTLE
BHE N FENEI7E MBI X HANRE -

FERBAT BERZEENBHANIE T
BRRBERINEZBMMAEZR AREFE
Pt EBEZZEERITRAELANREA -

2 BEh M &

REE-Z—\EF+-_A=+—BILFE &
RIS RIEE X RIEE A A QB N
AT B & 5 B A AR 1,880,000 M A R
3,880,000 - NEZE —ZEZ—N\E+-_A=+—8H
IEFE pEZRSE MIEEZRE DA ARAFI
TEAZBMRNIEE) e BEPR S RTEITTABN € D AT H
FIEAT :

Fees Paid/
Payable

B ENER
RMB’000
ARBFT

1,880
3,880
3,880

5,760

RERELEETEEGRAT —=—NER 71



72

Corporate Governance Report

ERELWE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie has been appointed as the
Company’s company secretary. Ms. Yuen is a director —
corporate services division of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated
business, corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters. Mr. Tao Yu, the Executive Director,
has been designated as the primary contact person at the
Company which would work and communicate with Ms. Yuen
on the Company's corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Yuen has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right
to call an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a
general meeting according to the provision as set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. A copy of the Company’s Articles of
Association can be found on the Company’s website. The
procedures for shareholders to nominate a person for election
as a director of the Company is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’'s website with title
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director of the Company”.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company

The Company also adopted a set of procedures for putting
forward proposals by the shareholders at general meetings.

Subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Company may from time to time in general
meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director at a general
meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board and Company Secretary. The period for
lodgment of such written notice shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of general meeting and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued) BRRER =)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for BRRERAZLB|FLATEENER (£)
Election as a Director of the Company (Continued)

In order for the Company to inform shareholders of that AFEARNARFBAKEZEED SEAMNETE
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the FBIEIRZRLBEEMALTEE (BRELTHREE
person proposed for election as a Director, including the 1351 EETEMBEATEEFE)  W/EHME
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of FERRMEREELREENALESR-

the Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder concerned

and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

In order to allow the shareholders have sufficient time to A{FERER A7 CREEEWILZESHERERE AL
receive and consider the proposal of election of the proposed HEIARREETMNER HEBRREETERTTE
person as a director of the Company, shareholders are M NEREREILBEHLEZEBEM-

encouraged to submit and lodge the written notice as early as

practicable.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board MESFRHESD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the MBEAMAAFTBAEEBE R UWAARRES
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the GRHEMEH AARBETEEEOENXE
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or &&Ee

anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details BigER

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as MREABBAT X FllEHKBNR:
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Company's principal place of business in Hong bl : RKAABBEELEME
Kong at 26/F, The Cameron, No.33 Cameron BEBENERPEHS FWE3IZNR
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong (For The Cameron 2612
the attention of the Board/Company Secretary) (MHARESS RAME)

Fax: 852 3907 0333 BE: 852 3907 0333

Email: general@aoyuanhealthy.com BT EH: general@aoyuanhealthy.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.aoyuanjksh.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of
the Company to the shareholders, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At
the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

In preparation for the Listing, the Company has adopted
the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders on 22 February 2019. Since then, the Company
has not made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles
of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association is also available on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company expects to pay a dividend equivalent
to 40% of the profit after tax upon Listing each year. The
payment and amounts of dividends, if any, depend on the
Company'’s results of operations, cash flows, financial position,
statutory and regulatory restrictions on the dividends paid by
us, future prospects and other factors which the Company
considers relevant.
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Report of the Directors
EEEE

The Board herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 98.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend
at the rate of RMB0.055 per share (equivalent to HK$0.064,
according to the central parity rate of Renminbi to Hong
Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China
on 28 March 2019, i.e. RMB0.85689 equivalent to HK$1.00)
amounting to RMB38,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$44,800,000) is expected to be paid on Tuesday, 18 June
2019 to all persons registered as holders of shares of the
Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2019, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the AGM. The aggregate amount shall
be paid out of the Company’s share premium account.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a
discussion on the prospect of the Group’s future business
development, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 10 to 13 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 22 of this Annual
Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. The particulars of significant events affecting the
Group that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 10 to 13, Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 and Four Years Financial Summary on page
212 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has
endeavoured to strictly comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection.

The Company recognizes the importance of environmental
protection. The Company is committed to providing an
eco-friendly energy environment for our staff and has
developed energy conservation and carbon reduction policy so
as to minimize negative environmental impacts.

A separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report
("ESG") for 2018 will be published on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in due course in compliance with ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 on the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and suppliers
and other (together “stakeholders”) are the key to our
sustainable and stable development. We are committed to
maintaining a good relationship with our stakeholders so as to
ensure our continuing development.
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EEEE

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable assets of
the Company. The Group is providing a fair and harmonious
workplace where individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds
are treated equally. The Group offer a reasonable remuneration
package and fair opportunities for career advancement based
on employees’ performance. The Group also provides our
staff with different trainings, including on-the-job training
and training courses provided by professional organisations in
order to enhance our staffs’ career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including contractors) are
equally important in building high-quality property projects.
We proactively communicate with our vendors to ensure they
are committed to delivering high-quality and sustainable
output.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last four financial years is set out in
the Four Years Financial Summary on page 212 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group,
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company has issued 10,000 ordinary shares for the
purpose of reorganization.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As of the Listing Date, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales of the Group
for the year. Purchases from five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the year.

BANK BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 55 to 75.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

For the purpose of determining the qualification as
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2019 to Tuesday, 28
May 2019, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2019, being the last
share registration date.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend (subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the AGM), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Monday, 3 June
2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019, both days inclusive.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company are required to lodge all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Miao Sihua
Mr. Tao Yu

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhibin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement

Dr. Li Zijun

Mr. Wang Shao

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Miao Sihua, Mr. Tao Yu, Mr. Guo Zining and
Mr. Chen Zhibin shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all independent Non-Executive Directors,
and still considers them to be independent as at the date of
this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors of the Company
are set out on pages 37 to 43 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing
enterprisewide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company
convinced that corporate governance and Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance (the “"D&O Insurance”) complement
each other. The Company has arranged appropriate D&O
Insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against directors and senior
management arising out from corporate activities. The D&O
Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years subject to the provision of retirement
and rotation of directors under the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has been appointed for a
term of three years at an annual remuneration set out in their
appointment letters subject to the provision of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of three years at an annual remuneration
set out in their appointment letters subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association.

Save as disclosed above, no other Director have entered into
service contract with the Company which are not determined
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance, to which the Company, its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

There is no transactions, arrangements and contract of
significance to the business of the Group between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, or a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year. During
the year, no transactions, arrangements and contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Company’s Articles of Association provide that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Director.

During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
the Company has taken out and maintained appropriate
insurance to protect the Directors against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of the Listing Date, the interests or short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) which were to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”) of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
associated corporations of the Company:

EEREBRTHRAEREG REMEK
P RAHERRRE

REMBE AR EEFRARAHEEMA
BEE(EEREHFMBEEN ([EHRBE
] ) EXVER) Rt kAR O P EENR
BESFLABHRAIEXVIBFEIREY A EME
ARARBRANERSIORE (BRERERE
&5 R AERGI AR GSUREFRRASEER
BmloRkA) HREEF LB RPIE3521F
ARBENZIGMENECTANERIORE

SWREST R ([EESFA]) R TR EZE I
=R/ INE

AR T 2 AR B A R AR B IR 05  E  1
il

Equity Approximate

interest/ percentage
number of of equity
underlying interest/
Name of associated Capacity/Nature of shares shareholding
Name of Director corporation interest (Note 3) interest
HERGZ
KBEEE HREMN
EEHA HE LB ER EESH MHE (B aE3) Aok
Guo Zining Ace Rise Profits Limited Interest of spouse 10(L) 10.00%
("Ace Rise") (Note 1)
Eilp e Ace Rise Profits Limited — ER{E#EzE (H1at7)
([Ace Rise |)
Chen Zhibin China Aoyuan Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 2,500,000(L) 0.10%
("Mr. Chen")
PR AR ([BREE]) W R [E BB A (Hit2)
Notes: bt -

(1) The 10 shares are beneficially owned by Ms. Su Chaomei (# 8 3
#2Z+), who is the spouse of Mr. Guo Zining.

(2) These represent underlying shares in respect of share options
granted to Mr. Chen by China Aoyuan.

(3) The letter “L" denotes the long positions in the shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register which were required
to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had been granted any right to subscribe for
the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, or had exercised any such right for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate competing business with the Group,
on 22 February 2019, China Aoyuan, Ace Rise, Joy Pacific
Group Limited ("Joy Pacific”), Main Trend Limited (“Main
Trend”), Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang Miner spouse of Mr.
Guo Zi Wen, entered into a deed of non-competition with the
Company.

In compliance with the deed of non-competition signed on 22
February 2019 “Deed”, each of China Aoyuan, Ace Rise, Joy
Pacific, Main Trend, Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang Miner has
made an annual declaration on his/her/their compliance with
the non-competition undertaking.

The independent non-executive Directors did not review the
status of compliance stated in the Deed for the year under
review as the Deed was entered in February 2019.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other matters regarding the compliance of the
undertakings in the Deed that are required to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had an interest
in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.
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GROUP’'S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s policy on determining the emolument payable
to Directors are based on the skill, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and the performance of each Director,
together with reference to the profitability of the Company,
remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing
market conditions. To enable the Remuneration Committee to
give better advice on the Group’s future remuneration policy
and related strategies, the Remuneration Committee has
been advised of the Group's existing remuneration policy and
succession plan, such as guidelines on designing employees’
remuneration packages and related market trends and
information.

The details of the Directors’ emoluments and senior
management’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As of the latest practicable date, so far as is known to the
Directors, the following entities, not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FREZH & 1R

ARBBEERERNETME 2B T ER@ER
EERE - MBKFE 2EQAFEHKZIEE
KRB - XY2RAFAMNKR AEKFLE
BHERE SERFMZESARAEEZ
ARFHBEREAAERBERERAEEER  H M
ZESRENAEEREFHBER LETE
(METITHMEFEETHEIRBEAMEBE R
BH) -

BE 2 N\F+-_A=+—HILFEEFMH
EREREEABFHZFRHARNKREUBR
KM -

FEERRREROREAMKOERDE
ZRRE

AERERATER ARRESHEETT
BABMME THER(LIFARAESER
ERTHRAB)RAR AR AR BB+
BEREEFRBEEIEXVIFE2REID
MR ARARRRBEOEDIORR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares (Note 1) share capital
ROBE MHEBTREAH
BREEAR 227, (Hrat1) HWES
Mr. Guo Ziwen Settlor/Beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust 396,375,000(L) 54.58%
(Note 3)
BRI EAE The Golden Jade Trust 5558 A/
Z@mA (Hit3)
Ms. Jiang Miner Settlor/Beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust 396,375,000(L) 54.58%
(Note 3)
IR Lt The Golden Jade Trust E5E:& . A/
X=mA(Hi3)
Main Trend Beneficiary owner (Note 2) 396,375,000(L) 54.58%
AR ERBEAN(HE2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS FERRNREMREARKGESD
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND BERRE &)

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Name of shareholder
BRERAR

China Aoyuan

H B R [E

Ace Rise

Joy Pacific

Sturgeon Limited

Asia Square Holdings Ltd.

J. Safra Sarasin Trust
Company (Singapore) Ltd.

Dawn Agile Limited (“Dawn Agile”)

Winfield Investment Limited
("Winfield Investment”)

Pine Capital Partners LP
("Pine Capital”)

Pine General Partners Limited
("Pine GP")

Winfield Capital Partners LP
("Winfield Capital”)

Winfield GP Ltd
("Winfield GP")

Chiu Man Wai ("Mr. Chiu”)
B ([HEE])

Lai Wing Sze Teresa Francesca
("Ms. Lai")
Maikes ([#Bat])

Capacity
514

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
REGEEES (HiE2)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
REGEEES (Hit3)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
THEE R (A53)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
RESEEES (HiE3)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
2 EEER (H723)
Trustee (Note 3)
ZEEAN (H1723)
Beneficiary owner (Note 4)
EmMAAN(Hit4)
Beneficiary owner (Note 4)
ERBEEAN (Mit4)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)
RESEE RS (Mita)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)
RESEEES (Hit4)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)
XEGEBER (i24)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Noz‘e 4)
2 EEER (f7t4)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)
RESEE RS (Hita)
Interest of spouse (Note 5)

ALBES (Wit5)

RERFLEEEERRAT —

Number of
shares (Note 1)
BB & E
(Kat1)
396,375,000(L)
396,375,000(L)
396,375,000(L)
396,375,000(L)
396,375,000(L)
396,375,000(L)
128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000(L)

128,625,000(L)

128,625,000(L)

128,625,000(L)

128,625,000(L)

128,625,000(L)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
HEBRTRAR
HNEDL
54.58%
54.58%
54.58%
54.58%
54.58%
54.58%
17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’

INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1

(2)

(4)

The Letter "L”
Shares.

denotes the entity/person’s long position in the

Immediately following the completion of the Capitalisation Issue,
the Global Offering and the exercise of the Over-allotment Option,
Main Trend (wholly and beneficially owned by China Aoyuan) will
be interested in approximately 54.58% of the total issued Shares.
By virtue of the SFO, China Aoyuan is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Main Trend.

China Aoyuan is owned as to approximately 52.1% by Ace Rise.
Ace Rise is owned as to 90% by Joy Pacific (which in turn is wholly
owned by Sturgeon Limited) and as to 10% by Hopka Investments.
Sturgeon Limited is wholly-owned by Asia Square Holdings
Ltd., as nominee and trustee for J. Safra Sarasin Trust Company
(Singapore) Ltd. as the trustee holding such interests on trust
for the beneficiaries of The Golden Jade Trust. The Golden Jade
Trust is a discretionary family trust established under the laws and
regulations of Singapore. Each of Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang is
the settlor and beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust. Accordingly,
each of Joy Pacific, Sturgeon Limited, J. Safra Sarasin Trust
Company (Singapore) Ltd., Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by China Aoyuan by virtue of
the SFO.

Immediately following the completion of the Capitalization Issue,
the Global Offering and the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.
Dawn Agile (wholly and beneficially owned by Pine Capital, which
is wholly owned by Pine GP) and Winfield Investment (wholly and
beneficially owned by Winfield Capital, which is wholly owned
by Winfield GP) will be interested in approximately 14.10% and
3.61% of the total issued Shares. Both of Dawn Agile and Winfield
Investment are ultimately controlled by Mr. Chiu. Accordingly, the
interests held by them shall be aggregated by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Lai Wing Sze Teresa Francesca is the spouse of Mr. Chiu. As
such, Ms. Lai is deemed to be interested in the 128,625,000 shares
of the Company in which Mr. Chiu is interested for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of the latest practicable date,
according to the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, there was no
person who had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at the date of this report and as at the Listing Date, the
Company has not adopted any share option scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the Board
confirms that the Company has maintained the public float as
required by the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
which do not constitute connected transaction nor continuing
connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules
during the year under review because the shares of the
Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 18 March 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company, comprising Mr. Hung
Ka Hai Clement as chairman as well as Dr. Li Zijun and Mr.
Wang Shao as members, has reviewed, together with the
participation of the management, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing
and financial reporting matters including the review of the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of
the Group are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
It is the auditor’'s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the Company and for no
other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
independent auditor’s report.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire as auditor of
the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2019 AGM.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 91 to 97.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AOYUAN
HEALTHY LIFE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 98 to 211, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

MREFEXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FERBREXFTERBESTENERELHE RAEHAK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HiIGAMBHENERRAEENEH FLE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EREEEZEREEEAMBEHRLEAES B
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the [RIB - FET YW ELEBERIIEHEZR -
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HREKRER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEE2ERNMEERFARERSER

Impairment of trade receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

ESRWREAREREANBEARNEZ ABAREZRE

We identified the impairment of trade receivables
and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant degree of estimations by the
management of the Group, in estimation of
expected future cash flows of collection of trade
receivables which may affect the carrying value
of the Group’s trade receivables and trade related
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries.
EEEREHRRRERERRARMNBLARE SHH
BRIEZRESNASERERER L AR E
HEaWBEmECERBEEN MEAGEFKREE
SR RERERRARZRMEARTE S HEBARIEZTE
MARRERE(AJETE E5EEHEKNIE
ZJHEEE)R BSXETEEBFHEXREEME-

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit loss (“ECL") which use
a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables (including
trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries)
as disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements by replacing IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”’s
incurred loss model with a forward-looking ECL
model.

EEEERBERMBREERNZSRGI T EAE
EHEEERE ([BHREEER])  ZHEEBNAA
EHEREEERERKERSAERE395 (&
MITA BRAKAEINCELEEEEXNERA2HE
HEEBETEFRA M BRI TIMBEELMAEE
ZENRFIE (BREERRRNEB LR EZHMANKIEA) -

Our procedures in relation to assessing the impairment
of trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries included:
EERTHESIRURBEREKRRRNBARE S
FRIECREZEFEE:

o Obtaining an understanding of how the
management assess the impairment of trade
receivables and trade related amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries by applying the
expected credit loss model and assessing
the appropriateness of the ECL model, by
examining the inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the ECL;

. THREBENNERAEREEEERXTGLE
ZREWRIA K B E R B AR E S HEERIE
ZREREEREAEENGERARNEEER
AR B ABERRETIEEREEBHEE
Bey@EE s

o For the collectively assessed ECL, we assess the
reasonableness of whether the trade receivables
have been grouped based on common credit
risk characteristics and are assessed collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings properly; while for individually
assessed ECL, assessing the creditability of the
debtors with significant balances by evaluating
its past default records and its past due
exposure, on a sample basis;

. REBTILNEHCEERENS  RMATRES
RUERERESERNAREERRFIESANE
B R EREE B AR SR sEAR G
WEHEEBEMS HMABETHREBEANR
FENRHEBEA P AR (FRMmERELE)FE
BREEREHRNEFANEREER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BRELER
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HMEERENR 2)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EEZERNNEEHERERER

Impairment of trade receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

EZRUFERBURERAMNBAREZAEARIR ZRE

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management estimate
the impairment of the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries. The measurement of ECL
requires the application of significant judgment
and increased complexity which include the
expected future cash flows and forward looking
macroeconomic factors.

WG E B RMEMA-BRE BREMAEIER
FEEEERERRAZWNBEARE SHEBERIEZR
B-HHEEBBZHEEXEAERABILIE M
EHE(BREARRESTRERANEE RBLE
&) -

As disclosed in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the gross carrying amounts of
the Group’s trade receivables are RMB53,595,000,
net of impairment loss of RMB5,174,000, and
trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries are
RMB175,933,000, net of impairment loss of nil,
respectively, as at 31 December 2018.
BUEATBEREMWF1ISRIEE R=2F— N
F+_A=+—RH EXEEFREREZERE
#1E A ARKS3,595,0007c IR AEBEARKE
5,174,000 KA ZHME AR E SR EFERARE
175,933,000 ' HIBR R BEEBES

Evaluating the appropriateness of the expected
loss rates applied by comparing them to the
historical recovery rates of its customers and
forward-looking information; and
BAKEHEEXETPATOWRXRETHER
MRBEAEMLENFEARANERIERXRE
SEE R

Assessing the reasonableness of the impairment
losses made on trade receivables and trade
related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
with reference to the ageing analysis, history
of past settlement records and subsequent
settlements to estimate the future cash flows;
and

2ERRIN BLEECHERRRENTE
THESERWREREKRARMEARE S HE
BRIBEZREEERGEAE

Performing recalculation based on the expected
credit loss rates applied by the management to
ascertain the accuracy of the impairment losses
on trade receivables and trade related amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries.
REEEEERANEREEBEXREMETA
HUHRESERWFEARERRRNEARE
ZRBRIBREEE 2 EEN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FARERAMZEKE R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EFE—+tF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

B & AR®T R ARETT

Revenue A 6 618,835 435,977
Cost of services Pk 7 X 2 (410,082) (287,519)
Gross profit EH 208,753 148,458
Other income E b e A 7 6,629 762
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 [i& 4 3¢ 18 i (& /&5 18 (987) (1,953)
Administrative expenses and TR R A A 2

other expenses (89,045) (41,894)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MY HEFA X (1,331) (321)
Listing expenses FHAEX (15,513) (4,646)
Interest on bank borrowing IRITERF B (11) -
Profit before tax R 35 Al & 108,495 100,406
Income tax expense FrigfiAx 8 (30,240) (30,474)
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREENKEEE

income for the year 10 78,255 69,932

Profit and total comprehensive income AT~ A = &G & K% Fll &

for the year attributable to: P HEH W B
— Owners of the Company . N/NEIE =N 78,144 69,750
- Non-controlling interests — IR R 111 182
78,255 69,932
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREMN(AEES)
— Basic —E K 11 16.54 17.60
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FaMBERAE

As at 31 December 2018 HZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
M sE AR T AR F T

Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEK&E 13 12,694 5,580
Intangible assets B EE 14 3,031 3,929
Goodwill EES 15 3,491 3,491
Deferred tax assets EEF IR B E 16 7.389 1,508
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE BEK 1,051 -

property, plant and equipment BB NES
Deferred contract costs RIE S &R AN 2,306 3,365
29,962 17,873
Current assets REEE
Inventories BB 17 77 93
Trade and other receivables g5 kHAMEWFIE 18 87,045 87,264
Deferred contract costs RIE S 4R AN 9,492 11,182
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JF& U [E R BT E A 7 3 1E 19 175,933 283,442
Amounts due from related parties JiE Ui BE B 5 3R 0A 20 206 6,652
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 21 200,331 164,373
473,084 553,006
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables 25 NHMENFKIA 22 226,233 196,500
Contract liabilities e ON=N 23 120,789 45,078
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R AZM B A RRIE 24 6,659 152,036
Tax liabilities MIBEE 20,538 65,289
Bank borrowing RITER 25 1,779 -
375,998 458,903
Net current assets REBEEFE 97,086 94,103
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERAHES 127,048 111,976

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBAE 16 757 982
Net assets FEE 126,291 110,994
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeaMBERAE
As at 31 December 2018 RZ-ZZE—NF+_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000

B 3E ARB TR ARETT

Capital and reserves EXREE

Share capital [N 26 = -

Reserves & 125,675 110,489

Equity attributable to owners of KARER ANEMLER 125,675 110,489
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEfE AR = 616 505

Total equity R iaRR 126,291 110,994

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 211 HFI8E2VNENGAUBHRER T —NEF=
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of A-+/\B&=EFed EMBRETZE WHT

Directors on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: NEERAZEE:
Miao Si Hua Tao Yu
HEE M F
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
5= s
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Eo3=g i §1 - IES

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG PN
Paid-in Non-
capital/ Share Statutory Capital Special Retained controlling
share capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests Total
RAgx/
B RHEE EERE EXRE BRIRE REBR Mt FERRER @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETT ARETFRT ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETn  ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
(GEE) (HsEb) (FsEc) (Miztd)
At 1 January 2017 WZE-t%-5-H - - 11,083 11,544 (29,486) 87,380 80,521 323 80,844
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFI R 2 EMNE AR
income for the year - - - - - 69,750 69,750 182 69,932
Net return to Guangzhou Aoyuan BN REEELLER
Assets Management Company BRAANZEE
Limited - - - - (13,728) - (13,728) - (13,728)
Deemed distribution to ultimate X EEEA%EIER
holding company upon REERAAN SR
Group Reorganisation (as defined (B &R MzE2) (MizE2ii)
in note 2) (note 2(iii)) - - - (26,054) - - (26,054) - (26,054)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+%+-A=+-H
(as originally stated) (REHM5) - - 11,083 (14,510) (43,214) 157,130 110,489 505 110,994
Effect arising from initial EREREIRMBREE]
application of IFRS 9 (note 3) FIRMTE (W3H3) - - - - - (438) (438) - (438)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-N\$-A-H
(E&3)) - - 11,083 (14,510) (43,214) 156,692 110,051 505 110,556
Issue of shares (note 26) B170RM (BE26) - 74,511 - - - - 74,511 - 74511
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFI R 2 A MK AR
income for the year - - - - - 78,144 78,144 1 78,255
Appropriation to statutory reserve & A EF - - 21,020 - - (21,020) - - -
Net contribution from Guangzhou REEMREEELLEE
Aoyuan Assets Management BRARSFER
Company Limited - - - - 18,432 - 18,432 - 18,432
Capital contribution from AZKEARTE
a fellow subsidiary - - - 10,000 - - 10,000 - 10,000
Deemed distribution to ultimate W EBEERE(E
holding company upon AEEERD AN K
Group Reorganisation (as defined  (F% RHizE2)
in note 2) (notes 2(vii), 2(viii) (BFR2(ii) » 2vili) &2(i%) )
and 2(ix)) - - - (32,863) - - (32,863) - (32,863)
Dividend declared (note 12) iR (HiE12) - - - - - (132,600) (132,600) - (132,600)
At 31 December 2018 W_E-N\E+-A=1+-H - 74,511 32,103 (37,373) (24,782) 81,216 125,675 616 126,291
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeRgaEEx

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes:

Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution dated 30 May 2018,
Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
issued 5,100 shares, 3,900 shares and 1,000 shares with a par
value of HK$0.01 to Main Trend Limited (“Main Trend”), the
immediate holding company of the Company, and Dawn Agile
Limited and Winfield Investment Limited, both of them are
independent third parties, respectively. The aforesaid shares issued
to Main Trend, Dawn Agile Limited and Winfield Investment
Limited are at cash consideration of HK$51 (equivalent to
RMB42), HK$72,540,000 (equivalent to RMB59,305,000) and
HK$18,600,000 (equivalent to RMB15,206,000), respectively with
details set out in note 26.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net
profit for the year of the subsidiaries established in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC") (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC
statutory financial statements) in accordance with the relevant
PRC laws until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced
except either use to set off the accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The opening balance of the capital reserve as at 1 January 2017
includes: (1) a debit amount of RMB5,156,000 related to an
excess of the proportionate share of carrying amount of net
assets acquired upon the acquisition of the remaining interest
in Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited
from Shenyang Hua Xin International Company Limited, a
non-controlling shareholder, in previous years; and (2) share capital
of subsidiaries contributed by fellow subsidiaries of the amount
of RMB16,700,000 in total prior to the completion of Group
Reorganisation.

The net return to Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management”),
a subsidiary of China Aoyuan Group Limited (“China Aoyuan”,
formerly known as “China Aoyuan Property Group Limited”),
represent the net fundings transferred from Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business (as defined in note 2) to Guangzhou
Aoyuan Assets Management prior to the completion of the Group
Reorganisation, details of which are set out in note 2.

The net contribution from Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management
represent the net fundings transferred from Guangzhou Aoyuan
Assets Management to Panyu Commercial Operational Services
Business prior to the completion of the Group Reorganisation,
details of which are set out in note 2.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Prior to the Group Reorganisation, the Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business was operated under Guangzhou
Aoyuan Assets Management and no separate bank accounts
were maintained by Panyu Commercial Property Operational
Services Business. The net cash flows generated by Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business were kept in the
bank accounts of Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management,
which is reflected in “Net cash from (used in) Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business” under cash
flow. Accordingly, the funds provided by or withdrawn from
Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management were presented
as movements in equity while there are no cash and cash
equivalents balance for Panyu Commercial Operational Services
Business.

For the purpose of presenting a completed set of financial
information of the Group, the following comprises the
information of cash inflow/outflow of the Group and Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business received/paid
by Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management prior to the
completion of Group Reorganisation.

HaBaRER
BE-F—N\F+-A=+—AILEE

REBEHAZA BERARELRBESHEM
REEEKEEERLE BERAREERBER
VHEEBRTEF -BERHXEERBEHEL
MRS REFRFABRMEREELEEEMR
THRP RRERERET [HERRELRSE
XGHE (AR)RESFR] -Fit aNEER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEeBaRER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
NOTE RMB'000 RMB'000
M 5E AR TR AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Profit before tax B A5 Al 108,495 100,406
Adjustments for: R R
Depreciation of property, V¥ -HELREKENTE
plant and equipment 2,919 1,861
Amortisation of intangible assets mEAE#H 898 459
Impairment losses 2 5 e WK IE R E E 18
for trade receivables 987 1,953
Exchange gain, net ME W e FRR (5.474) -
Interest on bank borrowing RITERFE 11 -
Bank interest income RITF B WA (320) (387)
Operating cash flows before LEEREEAN
movements in working capital KREBHSRE 107,516 104,292
Decrease in inventories GFERL 16 25
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 Kk H A E U FE
other receivables WA (3Ean) 2,878 (53,828)
Decrease (increase) in deferred AL A KR AR A (5#8n)
contract costs 2,749 (5,753)
Decrease (increase) in amounts B = NETE =
due from fellow subsidiaries Sk (180 ) 77,573 (101,887)
Decrease (increase) in amounts JFE Ui BE B 7 ZRIE R A (5B n)
due from related parties 6,412 (2,727)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H i J& - 2 E 3 29,237 90,254
Increase in contract liabilities X B EEN 75,711 9,640
Increase in amounts due to & 15 [B) Z B B A R) 3R IE 38 N
fellow subsidiaries 2,445 868
Cash generated from operations KEEANES 304,537 40,884
Income taxes paid BT (80,950) (3,139)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETBFRBRESTFHE
ACTIVITIES 223,587 37,745
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, BEME BENLKHE
plant and equipment (10,033) (2,582)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME BER
property, plant and equipment REEIN2ES (1,051) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of W —HHE AR (ENk
cash and cash equivalents acquired) FIRIRERBEEEED) 28 = (2,298)
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries [ &M B A FIER 83,808 44,901
Advance to fellow subsidiaries A SICES = NETE =] (322,275) (34,769)
Repayment from related parties Fﬁﬂwﬁﬁ?ﬂ 87 81
Advance to related parties BT REE 5 (53) (115)
Interest received EH&*'J% 320 387
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEZS (FTA)MEBREFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (249,197) 5,605
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeHeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AREEF T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank loans raised FERITER 1,779 -
Advance from fellow subsidiaries CES = PNSIEEN 44,492 57,264
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries MR XM E A RER (84,799) (5,167)
Issue of shares BETRG 74,511 -
Capital contribution from a fellow SERK & B E 4 AT — A
subsidiary prior to completion of B A& BAREE
Group Reorganisation 10,000 -
Share issue cost paid BT 5 BT (3,746) (742)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METHREBREFR
ACTIVITIES 42,237 51,355
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRREEEYEMFHR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 16,627 94,705
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) EEREYEEERBEY
PANYU COMMERCIAL PROPERTY FiB (FrA)B&FE
OPERATIONAL SERVICE BUSINESS 18,432 (13,728)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNZRERBEEZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 164,373 83,396
Effect of foreign exchange EEEg s w8
rate changes 899 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEEREESEEY W
AT END OF THE YEAR AND
REPRESENTED BY
Bank balances and cash WITHB AR S 200,331 164,373

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL

The Company is a company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and with its shares
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 March
2019. The Company was incorporated and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands under the Cayman Islands Companies
Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) on 13 December 2016. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in Corporate information sector
to the annual report.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Main
Trend, a limited company which was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate holding company is Joy Pacific
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands which is controlled by Mr. Guo Zi
Wen. China Aoyuan, a company which was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands and with its shares listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange is an intermediate holding
company of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in
the provision of property management services and
commercial operational services, and the particulars of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and the subsidiaries.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on the accounting policies set
out in note 4 which conform with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the principles of merger accounting.

In preparing for the initial listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange, the companies now
comprising the Group underwent a group reorganisation
as described below (the “Group Reorganisation”).
Prior to the Group Reorganisation, Guangdong Aoyuan
Commercial Property Management Company Limited
(“Aoyuan Commercial Property Management”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Operating
Subsidiaries”) were controlled by China Aoyuan.
As part of the Group Reorganisation, investment
holding companies, namely Main Trend, the Company,
Aoyuan Healthy Living Holding Limited (“AHLH") and
Aoyuan Healthy Life Investment Limited (“AHLI") were
incorporated and interspersed between the Operating
Subsidiaries and China Aoyuan.

The principle steps of the Group Reorganisation are as
below.

(i) AHLH was incorporated in the BVI on 3 November
2016 with limited liability, which is authorised to
issue 50,000 shares with a par value of US$1.00
each. On 8 March 2017, AHLH allotted 1,000
subscriber shares to the Company, pursuant
to which AHLH became a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Aoyuan Healthy Life (Hong Kong) Limited
("AHLHK") was incorporated in Hong Kong on
14 June 2018 with limited liability, and on the
same day, one subscriber share was issued and
allotted to AHLH, pursuant to which AHLHK
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AHLH.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS 2.

OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Guangzhou Aoyuan Commercial Operation
Company Limited (“"Aoyuan Commercial
Operation”) is principally engaged in the
provision of commercial operational services
and was established in the PRC as a limited
liability company on 10 July 2015. As of the
date of establishment, Aoyuan Commercial
Operation was wholly-owned by Guangdong
Aoyuan Cross-Border E-Commerce Group
Limited (“Aoyuan Cross-Border E-Commerce”),
a subsidiary of China Aoyuan. On 5 April 2017,
Aoyuan Cross-Border E-commerce transferred
its entire equity interest in Aoyuan Commercial
Operation to Aoyuan Commercial Property
Management, a subsidiary of the Company, at
the consideration of RMB1.

(i)  On 8 May 2017, Aoyuan Commercial Property
Management entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Aoyuan Limited and Panyu lJin
Ye Yuan Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Panyu Jin Ye Yuan”), both of which
are subsidiaries of the China Aoyuan, pursuant
to which each of Aoyuan Limited and Panyu
Jin Ye Yuan agreed to transfer its 83.32%
and 16.68% equity interest in Guangzhou
Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Aoyuan”) to Aoyuan Commercial
Property Management, at a cash consideration of
RMB24,386,000 and RMB1,668,000 respectively.
The amounts were settled under offsetting
agreements set out in note 30.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

Historically till 30 April 2018, part of the
Group principal business, which is provision
of commercial operating services of Panyu
Aoyuan Plaza, was carried out by Guangzhou
Aoyuan Assets Management. It also carried out
other businesses including property investment
and investment holding (the “China Aoyuan
Business”).

On 30 April 2018, Guangzhou Aoyu Real Estate
Exploitation Company Limited, a subsidiary
of China Aoyuan, terminated its commercial
management contract with Guangzhou
Aoyuan Assets Management and re-appointed
Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Commercial
Management Company Limited (“Panyu Aoyuan
Commercial”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as its commercial operational service
provider (the “Panyu Commercial Operational
Services Business”). The Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business and its specific
assets and liabilities (the "Assets and Liabilities”)
were transferred to the Group (the “Business
Transfer”) at its carrying amount on 1 May 2018.
Both Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management
and Panyu Aoyuan Commercial are under the
common control of China Aoyuan.

China Aoyuan transferred to Main Trend the
entire issued share capital of the Company on
23 May 2018, at a total consideration of HK$100.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS 2.

OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(vi)  AHLI was incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong on 15 December 2015 with limited liability.
On 15 December 2015, one subscriber share
was issued and allotted to the initial subscriber,
an independent third party, who on 4 January
2016 transferred that one share to China Aoyuan
at HK$1. On 23 May 2018, China Aoyuan
transferred its 1 share in AHLI, representing
100% of equity interest in AHLI to AHLH at
HK$1.

(vii)  On 25 May 2018, Aoyuan Commercial Operation,
a subsidiary of the Company and Guangdong
Aoyuan Commercial Real Estate Group Limited
(“Aoyuan Commercial Real Estate”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Aoyuan,
entered into an equity transfer agreement upon
which Aoyuan Commercial Operation acquired
from Aoyuan Commercial Real Estate its entire
equity interest in Shenyang Aoyuan Convention
Plaza Commercial Property Management
Company Limited (“Shenyang Aoyuan Convention
Plaza”) at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000.
The amount was settled under offsetting
agreements set out in note 30.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS 2. SEEHRGFEHERENIR
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION BRENE#E 2

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(viii) As part of the Group Reorganisation, during (i) tEASBEEHEN—I D KNFEEH
the current year, Guangzhou Aoyuan acquired B EMNEEETEREREERIL
additional 10% equity interests in Kunshan REMEEBREERLA (MR
Aoyuan Property Management Services Company IWEE]) SEERMEEERT
Limited (“"Kunshan Aoyuan”), Chongging BRAG ([EEER]) -FILEE
Sui'ao Property Management Services Company WMEBEERBERAA ([FILE
Limited (“Chongqging Sui‘ao”), Zhongshan Bl - ESREVMERBERA G
Aoyuan Property Management Services Company (AEAESREMEETERBEAE
Limited (“Zhongshan Aoyuan”), Shenyang RAR) (DEHREE]) R EMNSR
Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited, EMERBERAR ([ EMERER])
formerly known as Shenyang Aoyuan Property B10% BN BERERERA
Management Services Company Limited R #1,400,0007T - A k- % E E B2
(“Shenyang Aoyuan”) and Yulin Aoyuan Property RAERAGNEZENB AR -HEH
Services Company Limited (“Yulin Aoyuan”) from SRIBE AR BT ES0FT S K iR i 45
China Aoyuan at total sum of cash consideration 75

of RMB1,400,000, as such, these entities became
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The amounts were settled under the offsetting
agreements set out in note 30.

(ix)  On 6 August 2018, AHLI acquired the entire ix RZZE-NFNARB BEEE
issued share capital of Aoyuan Commercial FERERREMEMERERE
Property Management from Aoyuan Commercial PEMEERN 2B EITRA
Real Estate at a total cash consideration of @I e R E R A K26,463,000
RMB26,463,000. Aoyuan Company Property TLo-BEBEMEETEEBENE
Management through its subsidiaries engaged NARERHMETERBREE
in the provision of property management BEERE - WEBEEERZ-ZE—AN
services and commercial operational services. FAAT=ZBEX -EEFEELIR
The acquisition was completed on 13 August BRI S0P H K SH Hhaa 4505 ©

2018. The amounts were settled under offsetting
agreements set out in note 30.
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GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Group Reorganisation completed on 13 August
2018. The Group comprising the Company, AHLH,
AHLI, the Operating Subsidiaries held by Aoyuan
Commercial Property Management and the Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business and its Assets
and Liabilities resulting from the Group Reorganisation
has always been under the common control of China
Aoyuan before and after the Group Reorganisation.
Therefore, it is regarded as a continuing entity and the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared as
if the Company had always been the holding company
of the Group.

The Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business
was carried out by Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets
Management prior to the Business Transfer. To the
extent the assets, liabilities, income and expenses that
are specifically identified to the Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business, such items are included
in the consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. To the extent the
assets, liabilities, income and expenses that are common
to the Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business
and China Aoyuan Property Business, these items are
allocated between the Panyu Commercial Operational
Services Business and China Aoyuan Property Business
on the basis set out below (such items include income
tax expenses). Items that do not meet the criteria
above are not included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Income tax expenses which are common to the Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business and the China
Aoyuan Property Business are allocated based on the
tax rate of the Panyu Commercial Operational Services
Business as if it were a separate tax payer.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Directors believe that the method of allocation of
the above item presents a reasonable basis of estimating
what the operating results of Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business would have been on a
stand-alone basis for the reporting periods. Other than
the income tax expenses mentioned above, all other
items of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses are
specifically identified.

Prior to the completion of the Business Transfer, the
treasury and cash disbursement functions of the
Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business
were centrally administrated by Guangzhou Aoyuan
Assets Management. All the transactions of the Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business were settled
by Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management and
therefore, the net cash flows generated by the Panyu
Commercial Operational Services Business was presented
as net returns to or contributions from Guangzhou
Aoyuan Assets Management in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity and consolidated statements
of cash flows of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 which include the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the companies comprising the Group and
the Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business
have been prepared as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the period, or since
their respective dates of incorporation/establishment/
acquisition, where is a shorter period.
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GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group as of 31 December 2017 has been prepared
to present the assets and liabilities of the companies
now comprising the Group and the Panyu Commercial
Operational Services Business at the carrying amounts
shown in the financial statements of the group entities
which had been in existence at that date, taking
into account their respective dates of incorporation/
establishment/acquisition, where applicable.

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSs")

The Group has consistently applied the IFRSs that are
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2018, except that the Group adopted IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“IFRS 9”) on 1 January 2018 and
adopted IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“IAS 39") prior to 1 January 2018.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 for the first time in
the current year. The effect on the Group’s financial
performance and position of application of IFRS 9 for
the current and prior years and/or disclosures are set
out below.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

During the current year, the Group has applied IFRS
9 which introduces new requirement for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) expected credit loss (“ECL") for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and carrying amounts
as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement of financial
assets

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IFRS 9 are continued to measure at amortised cost as
were previously measured under |AS 39.

Impairment of financial assets

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial
assets for impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.
The results of the assessment and the impact thereof
are detailed below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

—NFFT+ZR=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the impairment of financial
assets under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018.

WMEXER ([E
) (&)

| BR B4
&

i 5K

R B
B R4
EREAERMEHEENEMNY
EHE

TRFPREREMNEE -Z—N\F—A
— BRI HREERFESR R g

FERIEIFIE TSRV EEMRE -
Amortised
cost

(previously
classified as

loans and Retained
receivables) profits
88 A A
(talo 38
BERER
FE U SR IE ) RE&EF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEF T AR T T
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 HRZ-ZT—+t&F+ = A
- 1AS 39 =+t —BRERES—
BB & 5T 22 Rl 553957 538,985 157,130
Effect arising from initial application BRERABERM SRS
of IFRS 9: HAFEIFHRE
Remeasurement EFE
— impairment under ECL model —TEHEEEEER
B THRE (585) (585)
- tax effects —-MBTE - 147
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—HA—BH
HA ) 45 61 538,400 156,692

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which use a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables (including trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and related parties). To measure the
ECL, the trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings and/or assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances which include those corporate
customers.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprise of other receivables, non-trade
related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and
related parties and bank balances, are measured on
12-month ECL ("12m ECL") basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For bank balances, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these banks. The
ECL is negligible.

For other receivables, the management of the
Group make periodic collective assessment on the
recoverability based on historical settlement records and
past experience. Based on assessment by management
of the Group, the ECL for other receivables is not
material.

Accordingly, no loss allowance has been recognised for
other financial assets as at 1 January 2018.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional loss allowance
of RMB585,000 has been recognised against retained
profits of RMB157,130,000. The additional loss
allowance is charged through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as at
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1 January 2018 is as follows: BB EEERNT
RMB’'000
AR¥TR
At 31 December 2017 - IAS 39 R-F—tF+-_A=+—~H
—BIFR & 5t R F 395 3,602
Amounts remeasured through opening FBBYIRE R T EH
retained profits FECEE 585
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 4,187

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments’
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business*
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or

Joint Venture?

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to Definition of Material®

IAS 1 and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 19  Plan Amendment,

Curtailment or Settlement’
Long-term Interests

in Associates and

Joint Ventures’

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements
to IFRS Standards

2015-2017 Cycle!
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
and interpretations will have no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the future.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. Upon
application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB11,430,000 as
disclosed in notes 27(b) and 31 at 31 December 2018.
An assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. The directors of the
Company have assessed that the adoption of IFRS 16
as compared with the current accounting policy would
result in an increase on the Group’s assets and liabilities.
Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases. However, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate a significant impact on the
Group's financial position and performance.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of RMB1,103,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be included in the carrying amount of
right-to-use assets.

The application of new requirements result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group elects the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

Furthermore, the Group elects the modified
retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information. The Group recognises the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application at an
amount equal to the lease liability, which is measured
at the present value of the remaining lease payments
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application, and adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “"Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis and in conformity
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities and
business controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary or business begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
or business and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary or business. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary or business.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries or business is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE —%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities or business under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities
or business in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or business first came
under the control of the controlling shareholder.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
consolidated using the existing carrying values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition accounting. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively; and

o liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangement of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangement
of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units). Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the year, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible

assets and deferred contract costs other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible assets
and deferred contract costs with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible

assets and deferred contract costs other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as deferred contract costs is recognised to the extent
the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not been recognised as expenses. The
assets capitalised as deferred contract costs are then
included in the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible

assets and deferred contract costs other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a first-in-first-out basis. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
Group satisfies a performance obligation

4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to customers.

Control of the service may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the service is transferred
over time if:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the service transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the service.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Property management services

The Group provides property management services, sales
assistance services and community value-added services
to property developers, property owners and residents.
Revenue from providing services is recognised over time
in the period in which the services are rendered.

For property management services fee income from
properties managed under lump sum basis, where the
Group acts as principal and is primary responsible for
providing the property management services to the
property owners, the Group recognises the fee received
or receivable from property owners as its revenue and
all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

Sales assistance services to property developers mainly
includes cleaning, greening, repair and maintenance
services to property developers at the pre-delivery stage.
The Group agrees the price for each service with the
customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual level of
service completed in that month.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Property management services (Continued)

For community value-added services, it mainly includes
(i) common area and advertisement space leasing
services; (ii) home living assistance services such as
purchase assistance for groceries, laundry, repair
and maintenance of home appliances and furniture,
telecommunications, turnkey furnishing and move-in
services; and (iii) property agency services. Revenue is
recognised over time in the period when the related
community value-added services are rendered. Payment
of the transaction is due immediately when the
community value-added services are rendered to the
customer.

Commercial operational services
The Group entered into agreements with property
developers or owners to provide the following services

to their shopping malls:

Market positioning and business tenant sourcing
services which primarily involve:

o market research and positioning service and
business tenant sourcing service.

Commercial operation and management services which
primarily involve:

° property management services including security,
cleaning, repair and maintenance services;

o business tenant management and rent collection
services; and

o other value-added services, including car park
management, at the post-opening stage.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Commercial operational services (Continued)

The performance obligations of the contract of provision
of market positioning service and business tenant
sourcing services represent the grand opening of the
shopping mall which have to be happened following the
achievement of certain occupancy rate of the related
shopping malls as agreed. Accordingly, the revenue was
recognised at a point in time when the milestone is
achieved.

The provision of commercial operation and management
services represent providing the property management
services, business tenant management and rent
collection services, and other value-added services to
the property owners or tenants at the post-opening
stage of their shopping malls, the Group recognises the
fee received or receivable as its revenue over time in the
period in which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as services are performed by the Group
and all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For contracts where the period between payments and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs (including labour costs, utility
expenses, materials and consumables and others) to
fulfil a contract in its commercial operational services
contracts. The Group first assesses whether these costs
qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant standards, failing which it recognises an asset
for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

o the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

o the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

o the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

Deferred contract costs capitalised at the end of the
reporting period are costs incurred to fulfill a contract,
of which, the performance obligation is not yet
satisfied. Deferred contract costs are recognised as part
of cost of services in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the performance
obligation is satisfied and revenue related to the
contract is recognised.

There was no impairment in relation to the balance of
capitalised costs as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All the borrowing costs not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans and state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
during the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries, amounts due from related
parties and bank balances and cash) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, amounts due from related
parties and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables (including trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and related parties). The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEXEHE &)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables from individual
customers, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary and amounts due from related
parties are each assessed as a separate group.
Trade receivables from corporate customers
are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable before
1 January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due from related parties and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans
and receivables are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’'s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the group entities are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank borrowing and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and
only when, the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the management of
the Group is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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JERM 4T A KRB E T RRE A
SEEEBANBABLEBEMARE
SHEERBGEREEED B G5 R
RF AT RABBRRIDENBEERK
HRSHEENEMAZIFL -BERERA
BB BN F bR -

it KA B R IR EE LR - S5t
fEEFEERT IR FHE FT HIR (B FT R
FEZHM) LRMERT IR R KR (fis
ERT R &2 8 A HA M BOoR SR AR ) #EAR

UTRRERENREBERAREHT
—BEYRFEEHEERAGBREEED
ERFHE 2 RKAAR T ERRMAF T E
ERRZHEMERRIR-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE —%

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

Since 1 January 2018, the Group follows the guidance
of IFRS 9 to estimates the amount of impairment loss
for ECL on trade receivables and trade related amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries that are measured at
amortised cost based on the credit risk of the respective
financial instruments. The measurement of ECL requires
the application of significant judgment and increased
complexity which include the expected future cash
flows and forward looking macroeconomic factors. The
impairment loss is measured as the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows with the consideration of expected future
credit loss of the respective financial instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk of the respective financial
instrument involves high degree of estimation and
uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise, accordingly. Details of the ECL on trade
receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 18 and note 19,
respectively.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill
is RMB3,491,000 (2017: RMB3,491,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Disaggregation of revenue

2R 5 R #
i 3 53 4R

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBEFT
Type of services @R
Property management services MEEERY
Property management services MEEERD 305,997 235,086
Sales assistance services 8 & & B AR 7% 98,907 43,920
Community value-added services 1 [ 1 1B R 7% 48,324 38,927
453,228 317,933
Commercial operational services EESAE
Commercial operation and FEELREERY
management services 102,577 49,586
Market positioning and M5 AL K P BB AR 75
business tenant sourcing services 63,030 68,458
165,607 118,044
Total B ET 618,835 435,977
Type of customers EFEER
Property management services MEEBERS
External customers INER R P 282,561 207,451
Fellow subsidiaries SN 163,961 101,028
Other related parties H th [ B 6,706 9,454
453,228 317,933
Commercial operational services EESINE
External customers INER R P 80,836 70,723
Fellow subsidiaries [A) Z Bt /&8 2 A 84,771 47,321
165,607 118,044
Total EEt 618,835 435,977
Timing of revenue recognition WA ERRE
Over time —EREBR 555,805 367,519
A point in time - (E B R 2h 63,030 68,458
Total EET 618,835 435,977

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE —%

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group's operating segments are determined based
on information reported to Chief Executive Officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM") of
the Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance, focuses on types
of services provided. The accounting policies applied in
determining segment revenue and segment results of
the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in Note 4 above. Segment
results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administrative costs, net
exchange gain and finance costs.

The CODM considers the Group has two operating and
reportable segments which are based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

a. Property management services

The Group engaged in the provision of property
management services, sales assistance services
and community value-added services for both
residential and non-residential units to property
developers, property owners and residents.

b. Commercial operational services

The Group engaged in the provision of
commercial operation and management services
and market positioning and business tenant
sourcing services to commercial property
developers and commercial property lessees.

No analysis of segment assets and segment
liabilities is presented as these information are
not regularly provided to the CODM for review.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Continued)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE
BE—T—\FE+-A=+—HBILEE

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

b.

Commercial operational services (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's
revenue and results by operating and reportable

MERSBEH &)

Baa®m (&)

b. BREERHE (&)

ST A2 R B R 7] 2 85

B DB AREBE DN -

segment:
Commercial Property
operational management
services services Total
BEEERE WEEERE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE2-E-N\E+=H
=t-ALEE
Segment revenue 2 EBA 165,607 453,228 618,835
Segment results DBEE 30,397 111,213 141,610
Net exchange gain B 2 s 5,474
Central administrative costs BEITERR A (38,578)
Finance costs B T PR AR (11)
Profit before tax bR B AL A1 108,495
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-t&+=H
=t-ALEE
Segment revenue R ON 118,044 317,933 435,977
Segment results R 35,125 73,708 108,833
Central administrative costs BETHAA (8,427)
Profit before tax B WA F 100,406
RERBELEEEEGRAT —T—/\FR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WaERSSMEIE 2

(Continued)
Other segment information Htt o WEH
Commercial Property
operational management
services services  Unallocated Total
BREERY NXEERHK AOE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_ZE-N\%§

TZA=t-HIL#FE
Segment information included FADHEETEN
in the measure of segment results: 7 EF&
Depreciation of property, mE-BERLBE 742 2,062 115 2,919
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets /& & B 8H - 898 - 898
Amortisation of deferred BHETSOKA 34,687 - - 34,687
contract costs
Impairment losses on trade REREANEHE - 987 - 987
receivables recognised W B R ERBE

in profit or loss

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-2-t&

TZA=+-HALEE
Segment information included FADHEEGER
in the measure of segment results: 2 &K
Depreciation of property, nE BERRIENE 137 1,719 5 1,861
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ E G E#E i - 459 - 459
Amortisation of deferred BHRETAOKAK 30,503 - - 30,503
contract costs
Impairment losses on trade REZEANE S - 1,953 - 1,953
receivables recognised JEY TR IR R E 1R

in profit or loss
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from customers is derived solely
from its operations and services rendered in the PRC
and over 93% of the non-current assets of the Group
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Fellow subsidiaries (Note) RZAEMBER R (KE)

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

MERSBEH &)

M E =
AEEBNEPRAERERPRNEREK
izt M AR 7S B AN BB 1B93% K IE 7
FEEMPFEH -

TEEFREH
EEFEREEPHRAMMAEERBKA
FI10% A E-aa T :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=T—-HLEFE

2018 2017
—®-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARET T

248,732 148,349

Note:

The revenue was derived from both property management
services and commercial operational services segments. The fellow
subsidiaries are the subsidiaries of China Aoyuan (excluding the
Group).

OTHER INCOME

GEE
W NEE A R IR R R 5 86 -

RARMBRABRTHREMBAR (TRELE
=) -

Hf i A

Year ended 31 December
BZ+=-B=1+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBET T

Bank interest income RAT A B U A 320 387
Net exchange gain P& 5 U &5 0% 58 5,474 -
Others HAtb 835 375

6,629 762

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. Fhrf8MBAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EFE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREFIT
Current tax B EA 74 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRGN
([EEFmEBHR]1) 36,199 31,600
Deferred tax (note 16) REBIE (MFE16) (5.959) (1,126)
30,240 30,474

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT
(the "EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

BiEPEARKNBECERSRHEE (D
EREHE]) RCEMBHEETHIEH
B BB A BT R A25% o

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

FRFTSTFE X ER T AR RS BRIDT -

160

to the profit before tax as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETF T
Profit before tax B 7 A1 g ) 108,495 100,406
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BHREREMSHEE25%
TEMFIE 27,124 25,101
Tax effect of expenses not deductible EEAEBR IR BEE
for tax purpose 3,106 1,415
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERTRE R EEN
difference not recognised IR 322 1,820
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KAERREEENREFE 2,421 2,190
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRERMARBEROBIEER
not recognised - (52)
Tax effect of income not taxable ERMBANTR BT E
for tax purpose (1,368) -
Differential tax rate on temporary BB A R R E R AR R = R
difference of subsidiaries (1,365) -
Income tax expense FriS Fi B 2 30,240 30,474

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 16.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. EE -FETHABREEFH
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS fy
The executive and non-executive directors of the AARHATEERIERITEER_Z— N
Company were appointed on 6 June 2018. Details of FERAANBEZT-RERN BENARGE
the emoluments paid to the directors of the Company EENME (BEKARATESHNE
(including emoluments for the services as employees of BEEEETEEMREHRBOENS)FHE
the group entities prior to becoming the directors of the R
Company) during the year are as follow:
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Directors’ fee EEHe - -
Other emoluments H b 3 BN
- salaries and other benefits —HeRAEMER 1,670 1,169
— discretionary bonus —BBIEA 737 200
— contributions to retirement benefit —RRAE T AT 84 50
scheme 42 10
2,449 1,379

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EF -FETTHRABRESEH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) Bl =)
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and Discretionary benefit
Fee other benefit bonus scheme Total amount
FM R RAER
He HitE R BETEA TEIM nE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREBTRT ARBTT ARETR ARETR

Year ended Bz-_s-N\%§

31 December 2018 TZRAZt-HLFE
Executive directors HITEE
Miao Si Hua HERE - 1,203 491 23 1,717
Tao Yu (appointed on BFE(RZZT—NF

6 June 2018) NARAEZA) - 467 246 19 732
Non-executive directors HHTEE
Guo Zi Ning g = = = = -
Chen Zhi Bin bR E0m - = = = =
Total FeH - 1,670 737 42 2,449
Year ended BZE-Z-t%

31 December 2017 TZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Miao Si Hua HEBE - 1,169 200 10 1,379
Tao Yu (appointed on BFE(RZZ-N\F

6 June 2018) NARNBEZE) - - - - -
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Guo Zi Ning Iz - - - - -
Chen Zhi Bin BRI - N - - -
Total @it - 1,169 200 10 1,379
Note: The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for ffizk: FRAITEEFTTFHARSEAETELRLT

their services in connection with the management of the KA E B EEATIR RIS B F B -

affairs of the Company and the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Miao Si Hua is the chief executive officer of the
Group, and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as chief executive
officer.

No remuneration was paid or is payable to certain
Directors in respect of their services during the current
year or the prior year.

Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun and Mr. Wang
Shao are appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company as at 22 February 2019 and
no remuneration was paid to them during the current
year.

The discretionary bonus is determined based on the
performance of individual and market trend for the
year.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
1 (2017: 1) director for the year ended 31 December
2018. The remunerations of the remaining 4 (2017: 4)
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out below:

9.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

EF-FETHARRERH

=)

++FE\$§E$EZ’K%@I TEZAE\’J:?&
RBEOEMeIEEEREETHASIRE
AR TS O S B

RAFES EFE BERETEFOR
ADBYADES-ENERCE TR

ARREE FTEBARERELER
E-NF_A+ - HEZERARAE
MEBMITESR BARARAFEL EF
BESATHB -

BISTEAERFANBEAXRRETSEE

HE-_Z—)\Ft+-A=+—RHILFE"
AEBREESTMALBE R (=ZE
—tF —R)EEHE_T-N\F+=
AZ+—HULEFE 8 THE (T —
FE) AEREE T

2018 2017

—E-N\E e

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR TR AR F T

Salaries and other benefits HeMEMER 2,890 2,978

Discretionary bonus BB TE AL 1,797 925
Contributions to retirement RAKAE T FH 8] R

benefit scheme 79 38

4,766 3,941
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE—

T \FT=A=t—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EF -FETTHRABRESEH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) Bl =)
The emoluments were within the following bands: N T LA TEE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE®A EE#A

Nil to HKD 1,000,000
(equivalent to Nil to RMB876,000)

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB876,001 to
RMB1,314,000)

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,314,001 to

Z 21,000,000/ T (FE R

TE AR#876,0007T) - 1
1,000,001 7c £ 1,500,000 7T

(HHE R AR®-76,001TE

AR #1,314,0007T) 3 3
1,500,001 Jc £2,000,0005% 7T

(HHERARE1,314,001 L2

RMB1,752,000) AR #1,752,0007T) 1 -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the RERN AEBFERTANESESH AR
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid SHMALT (BEEEREE)XNEM
individuals (including directors and employees) as an B4 - fEBWS A S INA K E B % 3%
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SREABREE N PNER eSS
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors ERETMBE -

waived any emoluments during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FRARF

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Profit for the year has been arrived FREMERIAT
at after charging: BIEGH -

Auditors’ remuneration (Note) i3 I AN, 1,880 -

Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EFRME (FH5F9) 2,449 1,379

Other staff’s salaries and other benefits  E fih 8 T 37 Bl Iz £ b 18 £ 238,695 171,575

Other staff's contributions to Hih B8 T ZiRIKEH 37,572 23,456
retirement benefit scheme FT 8l K

Other staff’s contributions to EMETI 7 AFERAES 9,402 6,293
housing provident funds H

Total staff costs BITRALERE 288,118 202,703

Amortisation of deferred contract costs  #$#5iEE A A AR 34,687 30,503

Depreciation for property, ME- -BELZBINE 2,919 1,861
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#H 898 459
(included in cost of services) (FFARTE K A)

Late charge for tax filing MBBRRBNE 5,293 3,382
(included in other expenses) (FFAEMA)

Late charge for retirement benefit RARENFERESE 518 212
scheme and housing provident funds NESHEMNE

Note: The auditor’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December M B#E-FT—tH&+-_A=+—HLEFE

2017 was borne by the intermediate holding company of B ERD B BN R A A R A R R AR A A
the Company, China Aoyuan. B B R o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share during both
years are based on the assumption that the Group
Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue as detailed
in notes 2 and 37, respectively have been effective on
1 January 2017.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

11.

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

BRAET

RREFEENSRERABFIRIEEEE
MRERET (FBIRERM 2R
W37 ER—ZE—+tF—A—H4EWH

BRFTHE -

R DR AR S AR TR X
THisEH

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®ETT
Earnings for the purposes of basic AR ESRETAZFA 78,144 69,750
earnings per share, as appropriate B (WER) (ARF
(Profit for the year attributable to HEARBGENEF)
owners of the Company)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Number of shares BRHEBE
Weighted average number of AR ESKRERAZF K 472,496,809 396,375,000

ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic earnings per share

B3 B hn#E F 15 B

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both
years as there is no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years.
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12.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company
during the year.

Prior to the completion of Group Reorganisation,
Aoyuan Commercial Property Management declared
a dividend of RMB132,600,000 to China Aoyuan and
settled through the current account with its fellow
subsidiaries on 1 July 2018.

For dividend declared by the subsidiary, the rate of
dividend and the number of shares ranking for the
above dividend are not presented as such information is
not considered meaningful having regard to the purpose
of the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 of RMBO0.055 per ordinary share, in an aggregate
amount of RMB38,500,000, taking into account the
700,000,000 ordinary shares in issue at the reporting
date, have been proposed by the Board of Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities
in these consolidated financial statements.

12.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

Bz B

ARBRFAL BIRNREIRERS

REBSEHETH REBEMEETER
BB EE KRS AR 132,600,0007T
FRZE—N\FLtA—HEBERRZEH
BARIMKEEMRP &1

B AR EIRMREM S  ARBREE
k=B MBS ZB BB SR E 5K
AMEUEER BWALB2F|BEER -

RREMHEEREZ T ERRFS AN
700,000,0008% BB 1T E @A - EEEE=H
MEBEE-_ZET-NE+_A=+—AILFE
TR A R BRI AR B & A X @ R A R #0.0557T
(& # AR #38,500,0007T) @ HEAEZF AR
AR R EEREBFRe EHEFSE
o mEARBERRMN RIS &
REREMIEmERERBAEE-

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. X - BERKH

Office Motor Leasehold
Buildings equipment vehicles improvements Total
BF WAERE RE HEHUR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
cosT KA
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+t%-A—H 606 5,708 868 3,963 11,145
Additions NE - 1,796 63 723 2,582
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-EHELR
(note 28) (Mi28) - 19 77 - 96
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-F=1+-8 606 7,523 1,008 4,686 13,823
Additions NE - 4,607 467 4,959 10,033
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-F=+-8 606 12,130 1,475 9,645 23,856
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%-A—H 29 3,873 635 1,845 6,382
Provided for the year FERE 29 846 161 825 1,861
At 31 December 2017 S 3
+-F=+-8 58 4,719 796 2,670 8,243
Provided for the year EERE 29 1,778 178 934 2,919
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-F=1+-8 87 6,497 974 3,604 11,162
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\%E
+-A=+-8 519 5,633 501 6,041 12,694
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF
+-A=t+-8 548 2,804 212 2,016 5,580

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their useful lives as follows, after
taking into account the estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis:

Buildings 20 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Over the shorter of relevant
lease term or 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B8 &
Property
management
contracts
MEEEEH
RMB’'000
AREF T
COST 2
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—HA—H 2,095
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 28) U BE — B B A A (Fi5528) 2,398
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—EFR - \F
+=—A=+—H 4,493
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—H—H 105
Charge for the year FANEMA 459
At 31 December 2017 A E—+F+-_HA=+—H 564
Charge for the year FANER 898
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H 1,462
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H 3,031
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 3,929

The property management contracts were acquired from
third parties through the acquisition of subsidiaries
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

The intangible assets have finite useful lives and
amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining
contact terms ranging from 4 to 5 years.

HE-_Z— XXk —+tF+=A
T+ —HULEFE WEEEANTIEBRK
BNBARIBBLE =TS

BVEEABREAFH RNFHER
FOFBANMR AL EREEHEE-

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

15. GOODWILL 15. &
RMB’000
ARET
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNTS RAREREHE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 1,602
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 28) Wi — A B AR (MiE28) 1,889

At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—LtFER T N\EHF
+= +—A 3,491

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired ZE B MM ERB B R 2 E Anhui Hanlin
Property Services Company Limited (“Anhui Hanlin™)
from an independent third party, which is engaged in
providing property management services (“Anhui Hanlin
Business”) in Bengbu, Anhui Province, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired RINERYEEIEBR A A Shenzhen
Huazhong Property Management Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Huazhong”) from an independent
third party, which is engaged in providing property
management services (“Shenzhen Huazhong Business”)
in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC. Details of
the related acquisition is disclosed in note 28.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating units ("CGUs") of
Anhui Hanlin Business (RMB1,602,000) and Shenzhen
Huazhong Business (RMB1,889,000) that are expected
to benefit from those business combinations.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs of Anhui Hanlin
Business and Shenzhen Huazhong Business have been
determined on the basis of value in use calculations.
Their recoverable amounts are based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecast approved
by the management of the Group covering a 5-year
period. All set of cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.
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15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GOODWILL (Continued)

Cash flow projections during the budget period for
both Anhui Hanlin Business and Shenzhen Huazhong
Business are based on the budgeted services revenues
and expected gross margins during the budget period
and the inflation of the PRC during the forecast
period. Expected cash inflows, which include budgeted
services revenues, gross margins and inflation
have been determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The value-in-use calculation of CGUs is based on the
following inputs, basis and assumptions:

(a) Revenue
Revenue is based on the existing charge rates
and revenue-bearing gross floor area (“GFA") of
the properties to be delivered during the budget
period.

(b) Operating costs

The cost of providing the property management
services were assumed to be approximately 93%
and 92% of the revenue of Anhui Hanlin Business
and Shenzhen Huazhong Business, respectively.

(c) Discount rate

Management considered market and industry
data to develop the weighted average cost of
capital for the value-in-use calculation. The pre-
tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flow
is 19.54% (2017: 19.04%) at 31 December
2018 for Anhui Hanlin Business and Shenzhen
Huazhong Business.

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

15. @& (#)

RROBMER LR X BN IEE ]
IR R ETRNENTEA RN EE RS
Yo g K% T8 HA E ) 2 A K o B SERI B PR 9
BRBREL -FAHBREESRA(BEEE
R EFRARBRER) HER
BERBREEEBHMSERNFARERE -

ReEEBMEREBEFEIDENRNLT®
ABUE  RERRR

(a)

(b)

(c)

Wr &

NETEETCEP LS E ek
SEELHE S E T 2 I(p
SEE)) AR

BERE

PRI E T IERIEAKAD B
I Z BB ETS KR ZE R E KUK
R #193% £92% °

R Bl

EREBETEEAEEMTINE
FHERKARE BTG RITER
B-RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8"
RIS ORI A FE 75 A
AIREHR S RENFAIFEA
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU of Anhui Hanlin
Business calculated based on value in use exceeded
carrying value by RMB1,716,000 (2017: RMB519,000)
as at 31 December 2018. The recoverable amounts of
the CGU of Shenzhen Huazhong Business calculated
based on value in use exceeded carrying value by
RMB1,672,000 (2017: RMB345,000) as at 31 December
2018.

The management of the Group determined that there is
no impairment of the CGUs containing goodwill for the
acquisition of business during the year.

The effect of the reasonably possible change in key
assumptions on the calculation of value in use of the
CGU of Anhui Hanlin Business and Shenzhen Huazhong
Business, which would cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount is disclosed below.

Anhui Hanlin Business

If the operating cost of revenue during the five-year
period increased by 5% (2017: 1%) and all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of
the CGU of Anhui Hanlin Business would be equal to its
recoverable amount as at 31 December 2018.

If the pre-tax discount rate is 2% (2017: 2%) higher
and all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the CGU of Anhui Hanlin Business would not
exceed its recoverable amount as at 31 December 2018.
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16.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GOODWILL (Continued)
Shenzhen Huazhong Business

If the operating costs during the five-year period
increased by 4% (2017: 1%) and all other variables
were held constant, the carrying amount of the CGU
of Shenzhen Huazhong Business would be equal to its
recoverable amount as at 31 December 2018.

If the pre-tax discount rate is 3% (2017: 3%) higher
and all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the CGU of Shenzhen Huazhong Business
would not exceed its recoverable amount as at
31 December 2018.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax assets
(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during
the year:

15.

16.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

(R 2E D,
B TR

WAFPREANRERRIENI% (ZF
—tF %) BEMAEMEERIBTE
AR —FE-NF+-_A=+—B FIE
PEBNRSEEBEUNERERERNE
A E g

MR ATRE IR K 3% (ZF— 1%
3% ) EfTEEMEERETE AR _-F
—NF+ZA=+—H RINEFEBD
ReELEMNREESTEBHE KE
TR

i 5E R IR

RENEZNTIBECHBEE (AE)
RHEEBWT -

Impairment
losses on
Intangible trade
assets Tax losses  receivables Others Total
ESERE
BREE REEE REER Hith @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AR%®Tn ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—H—H (498) 18 411 69 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y& — &M B 2 &)
(note 28) (K13E28) (600) - - - (600)
Credit to profit or loss FAFNERE
for the year 116 519 488 3 1,126
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
(as originally stated) +-A=+—-8
(Rx2350) (982) 537 899 72 526
Effect arising from initial &% & A B BR 81 7%
application of IFRS 9 WERRFTESE
(note 3) M52 (M:E3) - - 147 - 147
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&
(restated) +-A=+—H
(BE5)) (982) 537 1,046 72 673
Credit to profit or loss FAFRES
for the year 225 4,875 248 611 5,959
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%¥
+Z-ZA=1+—8 (757) 5,412 1,294 683 6,632

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 16. SRIERIF (&)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax T AL BHRE B AR RER B4 &%
balances for financial reporting purposes: AT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AREFIT

Deferred tax assets R IBEE 7.389 1,508

Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBAE (757) (982)
At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses RZE—N\F+_A=+—H A&EH
of RMB52,626,000 (2017: RMB23,444,000) available to BEARBABEEE ARKES2,626,0007T
offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2018, a (ZZE—+tF: AR®23,444,0005T) 7]
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax RBUEHER KGN R _T—NF+=
losses amounted to approximately RMB21,648,000 (2017: A=+ B AEERBEEBEHAR
RMB2,148,000). As at 31 December 2018, no deferred #21,648,000L (ZZE—tF: ARM
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining 2,148,0007T) ERELERIBEE - N _F
tax losses of RMB30,978,000 (2017: RMB21,296,000), —NF+ZA=+—B ARREMNBER
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. A TERNME - AN E I B eR T BRI

BARM30,978,000 (ZE—+F: AR
#21,296,0007T ) FERIEIEFL B E EE -

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following RIERHTIBBEGHN T F 0 EIH -
years:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBT T

2020 —E_TF 4,463 4,463
2021 T —F 8,073 8,073
2022 —E=-= 8,760 8,760
2023 —E_=4F 9,682 -
30,978 21,296
Tax losses TIEE B 30,978 21,296
Other deductible temporary difference  H R #E R Al H E B = 58
not recognised (note) (B &E) 15,579 14,291
46,557 35,587
Note: The other deductible temporary difference mainly arose Mer: HtMailfEREEFEREMRRE
from the accrued contribution to social insurance and BEABEE R

housing provident funds.
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17.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB165,270,000 as at 31 December 2018, as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

INVENTORIES

H At 51 £

Other materials

16.

17.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

EERIE (2)

BEFECEMBRE BZTTNF—
A—B# s BB QR ESSF
TR B EBMIBINF - A A EE /L
SR R AR ARAIER K
REFREBAIGE TS ELD - 46 M HmE
AW ARER—_E—NF+=_A=+—H
WPEMNBARRESEN (WAARE
165,270,0007T ) FE A5 B 5 = 5B 51 R IR AE AL
18 o

w8
2018 2017
AL —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARKETE
77 93

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B REMEUKRIE

As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000

B A AR TR ARET T

Trade receivables 2 5 EIWN R 53,595 71,829
Less: impairment losses on trade
receivables BB S EW R IE R E R (5,174) (3,602)
Total trade receivables g5 W RIE A 48,421 68,227
Other receivables: B fE RO
Deposits bireca (a) 10,561 3,539
Payments on behalf of residents  {EF IR (b) 15,080 10,187
Prepayments TE FRIR 2,019 1,197
Deferred share issue costs JRIERZ 1D 31T R A 5,780 1,549
Others HAtb 5,184 2,565
38,624 19,037
Total trade and other receivables 8 5 N H {th & X 7% 18 48 %8 87,045 87,264

Notes:

(a) The balance represented the amount paid to the service
providers as deposit.

(b) The balance represented the amount paid on behalf of

residential communities and commercial tenants to the
utilities service provider for the service provided.

Property management service income under property
management service segment and commercial operation
and management services under commercial operational
service segment are generally required to be settled by
property owners and property developers within 60 days
upon the issuance of demand note.
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18.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Generally, the counter-parties of market positioning
and business tenant sourcing services under commercial
operational service segment are required to make
installment payments in accordance with the payment
schedule as set out in contracts. However, depending
on market conditions and bargaining power of the
counter-parties, credit and payment terms may vary in
accordance with the contracts.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the date of demand note:

18.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

BORHEMEIHIE 2)

—HRME BARELRBEDEHEEL R
BPRERENXZEHFAREAOAE
TREHEET D BN R AT BFHR
EZZHFOHBEN EERIER
HEAHNME-

AT BE S RYGRIAENKREK DT HER
HEERHZY -

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
0 to 60 days 0E60X 16,389 44,971
61 to 180 days 61£E180K 13,476 9,186
181 to 365 days 181E365K 11,263 6,875
1 to 2 years 12245 6,933 6,552
2 to 3 years 2E34F 3,192 2,596
Over 3 years tBiE3F 2,342 1,649
53,595 71,829

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB32,087,000 (2017: RMB23,256,000) as at
31 December 2018, which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss as the Group considers
such balances could be recovered based on historical
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 F5H
BoRWAREEHKEPEEOIREAAR
#32,087,000c (T —+F: AR
23,256,0007T ) H) EYER X - B R &5 B R
Eaf mASEYENLFHIRAEEE
BiE AARBBATLR A5ERAEE
MEnBEr e NEBVERZEES
FEEAEER-
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18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following table shows the movements in the
allowances of loss for trade receivables that has been
recognised for trade receivables during the year:

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

18. EHREMBURIE =)

TREVNRNFARE Z W IRERHE
SRM AR R EES:

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+-—H

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+tF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T AR F T

Balance at beginning of the year (note) F¥#& & (FfzE) 4,187 1,649
Allowances of loss recognised B 5 EBORIBHE R

on trade receivables SR G 987 1,953

Balance at end of the year FRE 5,174 3,602

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
and comparative information is not restated.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the amounts are over one year
past due without subsequent settlement, whichever
occurs sooner. Trade receivables written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Included in the allowances of loss for trade receivables
are collectively impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of RMB5,174,000 (2017:
RMB3,602,000), respectively, which are past due as
at 31 December 2018. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the reporting date.
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18.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables
subject to ECL model

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
Debtors with significant balances who are those
corporate customers are assessed individually, and
the remaining debtors are grouped under a provision
matrix and are assessed collectively, by reference to past
default experience and current past due exposure of the
debtor, and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial
position.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and study of other corporates’ default
and recovery data from international credit-rating
agencies including Moody's and Standard and Poor’s,
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in the PRC, which reflect the general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate)
that is available without undue cost or effort. Such
forward-looking information is used by the management
of the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for trade receivables over 90 days past
due based on the good repayment records for those
customers and continuous partial settlement by the
trade debtors with the Group. Large number of small
customers are assessed collectively based on provision
matrix based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking estimates. Individual
customers with significant balances are assessed
individually for the credit risk based on their probability
of default and exposure of default. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
provided RMB987,000 loss allowance on ECL based on
the provision matrix.

18.

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE
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18.

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. R RHAMBUKRE )
(Continued)
Impairment assessment on trade receivables ZERHMEEEREIXHABRHESHERR
subject to ECL model (Continued) EHREFE (Z)
For trade receivables, the Group has applied the HREZREWRIE  NEBRABETE
simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss WEEAFORME HF A E 2 Hi 78 H
allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables EEEENEREE BMEE XA
are assessed individually for corporate customers with MEEEPER Rt AEE LRRRE
significant balances and/or collectively for large number BRZE B P EREEARN MR EER
of small customers with common risk characteristics SRTHESHEKFIEEREEEE
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
The following table provides information about the TREJNFEREE@YHNEERR R
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade —E-N\F+ZR=+—RHERFENE
receivables that are assessed collectively (excluding SREKFIBEREEER (T2EEBIET
corporate customers that are assessed individually) as at EHEEER)NER:
31 December 2018:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEBERX IREEARE EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Current (not past due) BVHA (R HR) 0.09% 15,239 14
1 - 120 days past due A1 E 120K 2.13% 12,180 260
121 - 365 days past due BMEI1212365K 6.28% 10,325 648
1 — 2 years past due WA E2F 24.82% 6,679 1,658
More than 2 years past due I EJBiE24F 38.81% 5,534 2,148
49,957 4,728
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 19. BRI ZME LTI RIE
SUBSIDIARIES

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Trade nature BS54 175,933 253,506
Non-trade nature (note) FEEZEFMHD (KMFE) - 29,936
Total @t 175,933 283,442

Note: The amounts advance to the fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
management of the Group considers the amount is
expected to be settled within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period and accordingly the amounts are
classified as current assets. In addition, on 1 July 2018 and
30 September 2018, the Company has entered into two
agreements with China Aoyuan respectively for which the
non-trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries has been
settled by offsetting arrangements with the amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries at the amount of RMB25,638,000 as
at 31 December 2018.

The Group generally grants a credit period of 365
days for its provision of property management services
and commercial operational services to its fellow
subsidiaries. The following is an aging analysis of trade
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries presented based
on date of demand note:

Wit: BNRRXWNBARRBEAEERR 28
DIREREE-AEBEEERE %
REBEHRARERRET=@ARE
BRALZEREESEARDEE -
o R—ZZET—NELtA—ABAR=-ZT
—NFLAZ+H ARAFEFPHREE
DRFT LMD iBE B IFEE SRR
ZHBARRBEDIR -Z—N\F+ -8
—t+—EHENRRMNBRARREAR
#25,638,000 TR SH L P45 H -

AEERHERRMBARREYMEREERR
5 5 50 2 RS B — ARIX T365KM(E
EH-ATREHEBEAHZIINEKE
ZMBARE S HRIANRE DT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

0 to 60 days 0E60X 62,545 40,596
61 to 180 days 612180k 46,705 37,729
181 to 365 days 181£365K 48,569 49,328
1 to 2 years 1224 17,682 70,087
2 to 3 years 2E3%F 432 30,394
Over 3 years 3FM E = 25,372

175,933 253,506
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, are receivables with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB18,114,000 (2017: RMB125,853,000)
at 31 December 2018 which are past due as at the end
of the year for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of these trade amounts
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end
of the year and no impairment is considered necessary
for those balances which are past due but not impaired
as these entities are the subsidiaries and joint ventures
of China Aoyuan with good credit ratings.

Staring from 1 January 2018, the Group applied
simplified approach to provide the ECLs prescribed by
IFRS 9. The impairment methodology is set out in notes
4 and 18.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the
Group uses the internal credit rating to assess the
impairment for its fellow subsidiaries and its related
parties. The management of the Group considers
that there is no significant ECL recognised for the
trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the current and forecasted
economic growth rates in the PRC, which reflect the
general economic conditions of the real estate industry
in which its fellow subsidiaries and related parties
operate) that is available without undue cost or effort.
The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL for trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries and
related parties that over 90 days past due based on
the strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations, good credit rating and continuous partial
settlement of these counterparties. The management of
the Group consider that the default risk is low based on
their probability of default and exposure of default.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

BlRRRMEBATRIE &)

RZZFE-NF+ZA=1+—H Tx&EEE
WRRMBARMNE HFERIEEREE
BARE18,114,000T (ZE—+tF: AR
#125,853,0007T ) #) FE W IR - H A F
R EEP - i AN 5 B 0 A BB (B R R AT IR
B AEENTERZELEHREFETMIE
e

S G P T et
B 75 A SK B 2 48 1 R R
REETARSESRANREEE RN
ALY LRARFERLSDAMERR
Em SR RAE RERRSERAR
BRFOERFRHT ARRHKEAR
RABRE-

E-Z-N\F—A—HR AEEEHAH
b 77755k B R B 7 3 5 2E R 8595k 71 A &Y
TEEE E BB T IR S BT EEH M
FF4N18 o

ERAEEFEERRERN —HH K&
EEAAMERFEFHEERRMBERR
K BAEE T BVRME - RIZE TS A TR F B0
BELERMESENR IREFNHES
AR N AN A SR ATREEE R (Pl -
FEEAMRBEAEEERE RIRTHEF
EWMBARRBEBO K EMERBEITE
MEBERBKAEARIEL AR AEEEE
ERRRREKNEARESEKFIALEE
REHREERE -ENZERZHUTER
REENmEEAHNREREERE RFE
EHRRESERDBFE NEEESY
A 78 BB 3B90K ) 8 U [R] 2 P /8§ 1 ) K 8
B ESRUBEREBRBEEBBEN
MENBRR ASEEEER/RERLE
HIRIREME S B MR\ - AR R E A RS B (K
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 20. FEUxRBIB: 5 218

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000

B 3E AR TR ARETT

Trade nature = (a) 206 6,618
Non-trade nature FESHEE (b) = 34
Total st 206 6,652
Notes: I 5E -

(a) The related parties are joint ventures and an associate of (a) AT ATRHRERENAGECERBEEA

China Aoyuan.

(b) The related parties are joint ventures of China Aoyuan.
The non-trade amounts advance to the related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group generally grants a credit period of 365 days
for its provision of property management services and
commercial operational services to its related parties.
The following is an aging analysis of trade amounts due
from related parties presented based on date of demand
note:

&lo

(b) MEhATEREEMNA 20X - MEE
FTHFESBRREER RERRE
SKIEE -

JriiiES

AEBMERY T IREMEE R RS RE
KELERBE —RE TIRNEED-
AT RS EE AR50 RIKERR S &
ZRIBRREB DA

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®B TR ARET T

0 to 60 days 0E60X 137 1,299
61 to 180 days 61E2180K 69 1,424
181 to 365 days 181E365K - 2,759
1 to 2 years 1224 - 994
2 to 3 years 2E3F - 142

206 6,618
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

21.

22.

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. RTEBRRAS
The bank balances carry interest at variable rate with RZE-—NF+ZA=1+—H RIT7&#%
an average interest rate of 0.18% (2017: 0.32%) per BZEFEGE  FHFEFEH0.18% (=

annum at 31 December 2018.

T—+F:032%) °

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. BHRHEMESSKRIE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-—8
2018 2017
—E-N\E T +tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000

B & ARET ARETT

Trade payables 2 5 e RIE 27,374 26,243
Other payables: ELh JE < 5UIE
Receipts on behalf of residents REF WK (a) 20,729 8,141
Deposits received Blite (b) 92,520 71,003
Accrued staff costs st B TR 34,659 30,478
Accrued contribution to ERT R &
social insurance and FERESMHR
housing provident funds 12,125 10,836
Accrued share issue FERT A% 0 31T
cost/listing expenses BRA, EmAX 5,170 3,229
Other tax payables E b FE AT B IR 7,107 17,007
Accrued expenses e X 7,509 8,691
Other payables oAt & FRIE 19,040 20,872
Total other payables HfhFE S RIE AR 198,859 170,257
Total trade and other payables B 5 N H M RIB B 226,233 196,500
Notes: M 5E -
(a) The balances represented the receipts on behalf of (a) EHREARALCEBEFPWERMRIE ARG
community residents to settle the utilities bills from utilities HKEBHEMMKERE -
suppliers.
(b) The balances mainly represented by the utility deposits (b) EHRIZREEHEEPEREPKEIHA
received from the community residents and commercial BEERE-
tenants.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranges from 30 days to 90 days during the year.
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each

reporting period:

22. BHREMESRIE 2)

RERN BFAESBEHEFINEESHN
T30RKZE0KR- U FARSREHRRE
REZHHENNE S EMNFIBENERR

PoRie

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-NE ZE—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
0 to 60 days 0E60X 15,918 19,263
61 to 180 days 61E2180K 8,682 3,420
181 to 365 days 181E365K 2,401 1,900
1 to 2 years 1224 332 1,501
2 to 3 years 2E3F 39 137
Over 3 years 3F LA E 2 22
27,374 26,243

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities represented the advance from
customers for property management services and
commercial operational services. The payment terms

23. S¥AaRB

BHNRBERERNEEERBLBEEL
RIEOBFPER - X MERERARF R
SENFEEERGEHRAFRELREE

vary and depend on the terms of the Group's property
management services contracts and commercial
operational service contracts.

KGR E

2018 2017

AL —E—+tF

RMB‘'000 RMB'000

AR% T ARBEFIT

Property management services VEEIERS 83,345 29,177
Commercial operational services EEEERE 37,444 15,901
Total HET 120,789 45,078

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

23.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table sets out the revenue recognised that
was included in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year. There was no revenue recognised
during the year that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in a prior year. The contract liabilities
from the market positioning and business tenant
sourcing services of commercial operational service
contracts are recognised as revenue following the
achievement of certain occupancy rate of the related
shopping malls.

23.

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

=o)X 8¢ D)

TREBIRFIHAEGHABEHRNCIE
R -RFER WEERERE L —F5
RHBEAEEN RS BEELREEH
MmSEMREFAERE SR ERE
FAESIE A RER —EKFRER Bk -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREFT

Property management services MEEERS 29,177 25,086
Commercial operational services EEISNE 12,854 4,974
42,031 30,060

The unsatisfied contracts related to the provision
of property management services and commercial
operational services at the end of each reporting period
are as follows:

S

ERENREARERYEXEERRS KB
KEERBORTHENNT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBT T
Expected to be recognised
within one year FEHR —FRNER 166,756 80,315
Expected to be recognised
after one year TEEAR —F B TER 21,700 7,700
188,456 88,015
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24.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table sets out the contract liabilities was
due to the following parties:

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

23. S¥AER/ #)

TRBIIEN TS THEOERE:

2018 2017

—E-NF —T—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR T T

External customers Y= 57,679 30,744
Fellow subsidiaries EESEIANE] 56,960 14,189
Related parties (note) BEEE 7 (B RE) 6,150 145
120,789 45,078

Note: The related parties are a subsidiary of non-controlling

shareholder, joint ventures and associates of China Aoyuan.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW

5

A Bt 77 3 S 1 BR IR SR &0 Y 88 % B LA K2 o

HEEMNAEDERBZRF -

24. BENRARHELFRER

SUBSIDIARIES

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
M sE AR® T AR F T
Trade nature g 5MHE (a) 3,486 1,041
Non-trade nature EEBEZHMEL (b) 3,173 150,995
6,659 152,036

Notes: B 5 -

(a) There is a credit period of 60 days granted by the fellow
subsidiaries.

(b) The amounts advance from the fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(a) RAEMEREETHEEDRREOK-

(b) KERFMBRARMBRBEER

ERBEREER-

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR

R



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 24. BRRARMELATRE (2
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The following is an aging analysis of trade amounts due NTRIZSEHEERQRZ5NERNRZRM
to fellow subsidiaries presented based on respective BARE SFIBBRNRE DT

date of demand note:

2018 2017
—B-N\F B
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARET T

0 to 60 days 0E60X 2,345 750
61 to 180 days 61E180K 600 291
181-365 days 181E365K 541 -
3,486 1,041
25. BANK BORROWING 25. SMITHER
The bank borrowing is denominated in RMB, carrying RITEFUAAREHE  REEFHET%
fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and unsecured and R EERRR-FAEER-

repayable within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

SHARE CAPITAL 26. =X
Details of movements of authorised and issued share RAREECEITRANESFBEOT
capital of the Company are as follows:
Number of
shares Share capital
BR5EE g
HK$ RMB'000
BT AREFTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & [%0.01/8 L2 L @Ak
Authorised: EERA:
On 1 January 2017, R-ZZT—tF—HF—H"
31 December 2017 and —E—+F+=A
31 December 2018 Z+—BEZZT-N\F
+-—A=+—H 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBERE:
On 1 January 2017, RZE—t5—HA—H"
31 December 2017 —E—+F
+=ZA=+—"H 10,000 100 -
New ordinary shares issued RZE-N\FHA=TH
on 30 May 2018 BT MEAR 10,000 100 -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—NEF
+-A=+—"H 20,000 200 -

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution passed on
30 May 2018, the Company issued 5,100 shares, 3,900
shares and 1,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01
to Main Trend, Dawn Agile Limited and Winfield
Investment Limited respectively. The aforesaid shares
issued to Main Trend, Dawn Agile Limited and Winfield
Investment Limited are at cash consideration of HK$51
(equivalent to RMB42), HK$72,540,000 (equivalent to
RMB59,305,000) and HK$18,600,000 (equivalent to
RMB15,206,000), respectively.

PrBEFBRNERERDEMETHZEEAR

FHAL o

BER-_ZE—N\FRAA=THBEBHEE
RBR AR FDRIRAE - Dawn Agile
Limited & Winfield Investment Limited %
775,1004% * 3,900% K. 1,0004% [H 1E0.017%
TCRIRR 1 o Full 34T T BA# - Dawn Agile
Limited & Winfield Investment Limited &%
WD RRESNRESE T (HERAR
#427T) ~ 72,540,000 7T (FHE R AR
59,305,0007T ) 18,600,000 7T (¥ &
AR #15,206,0007T ) 317 ©

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

Related party transactions

HE-F—

NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into the
following significant transactions with related

parties as follows:

27. ABKFHEE

MBAXS

RERN REEFTILIATE A
TR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARBFT
Property management services YWX¥EERHK
Fellow subsidiaries EESGIEPNG 163,961 101,028
Related parties (note a) BT (Miska) 6,278 9,158
Non-controlling shareholder of —FEM B R A JEER R
a subsidiary (note b) (MI5Eb) 402 270
Directors of the Company KARES 26 26
Total (el 170,667 110,482
Commercial operational services B¥E & R
Fellow subsidiaries BN =NE] 84,771 47,321
Purchasing of commercial goods B E&E R &R
and services
Fellow subsidiaries EES =N 5,831 558
Non-controlling shareholder of — M E A A FEERAR R
a subsidiary 119 149
Related parties (note a) BT (Misxa) 275 228
Total it 6,225 935
Lease expense HERX
Fellow subsidiaries B % [ff )& A 7] 1,963 768

Notes:

(a) The related parties are joint ventures and an
associate of China Aoyuan.

(b) This entity has significant influence over a non-

wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (Continued)

The Group is licensed by China Aoyuan to use
the trademark of “Aoyuan” on an exclusive
and royalty-free basis for a perpetual term.
During the current year, China Aoyuan assigned
the Group its right to use certain purchased
computer softwares and related equipments and
the respective fee was borne by China Aoyuan.

Lease commitments with fellow
subsidiaries

27. BB EE =)
(a) BABEXH (&)

REBEESEREFAIRBER LR
SHEEREEECERAREI R
F BEIR-RAFE FERE
BT ASEENERETEREN
ERMEREERE MARER
F AP B R R R

(b) ARMEBAFHERKIRE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Minimum lease payments under A&EBH THREREN

operating lease:

Within one year —FR 1,534 1,536

In the second to fifth year FE_EZFERF
inclusive (BREERME) 2,753 -
4,287 1,536

Operating lease payment to fellow subsidiaries
represent rentals payable by the Group for its
office premises and Chinese medical clinic. Leases
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of
one to five years.

AR R B AR HEERE N
REAEERERAEMERTE
THNENES BEZEBRR—
EAFMARANZEERE T
Be

RERBELEEEEEGRAT —T—/\FH
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IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 27. BBEAE &)

(c) Compensation of key management (c) FEEBAEFHFH
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel FEEBAERFRNFTMAT

during the year was as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARET T

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 3,831 3,889
Discretionary bonus B 15 18 41 2,046 1,145
Contributions to retirement RORAE MG B 3K
benefit scheme 111 57
5,988 5,091
The remuneration of key management personnel FTEEBABNFHHIZ2BEARBERT
is determined by reference to the performance of HBREE-

individuals and market trend.

28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY 28. KWBME LT

On 28 November 2017, the Group acquired of the RZE—+F+—HAZ+N\B Tr&EEEH
entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Huazhong from BUYB=ARYTHEENEZEFTR AR
Shenzhen Zhongnan Huali Investment Company Limited, W RN ERH2HEBITREN REA
an independent third party, at a consideration of AR #2,500,0007T * AR R I 48 o 375 o
RMB2,500,000 to expand into operation in Shenzhen. ZRHERABWBE ST RIEARIIIEER
This transaction has been accounted for as a business G NI EIETAKE  RIIERK A
combination using acquisition accounting. Upon RRRWEZEEZEWB AR ORYIZERE
completion of the acquisition, Shenzhen Huazhong ERRINEEMEETIERTS -

became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Shenzhen Huazhong is primarily engaged in
the property management services in Shenzhen.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at

the date of acquisition are as follows:

FeMBEHRRME
BE-—T—)\&+-A=t+—BHILFE
IkEME AT (2)

RUERHFMEBEERIERBENR
FEMT:

RMB’000
AR®T T
Intangible asset BLEE 2,398
Property, plant and equipment ME - -WERZRE 96
Trade and other receivables H 5 K E M E W IR 301
Bank balances and cash WITHBRIR S 202
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik H & A 5UE (1,786)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE (600)
Total HmEt 611
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 15) WEEEERE (MFE15) 1,889
Consideration RE 2,500
Consideration transferred: FregaE (g :
Cash Be 2,500

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the
date of acquisition amounted to RMB301,000. The
gross contractual amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquired amounted to RMB414,000 at the
date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition
date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected amounted to RMB113,000.

SR HEAMmERGERKE B RN AFE
BARE301,000 - RWERE - ZEE
WHENE S REMEWRGFENESLNSHE
B AREA414,0007T - AUEE B B4 TEAHE
FEREZEHREREZ REBTABAR
#113,0007T °

RMB’000
AR¥T R

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEENBES L FE:
Consideration paid in cash AR & S e R E (2,500)
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig NiRTT# A R IR & 202
(2,298)

REREEZEESRAT —2—N\EHR 193
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

28.

29.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 was a loss of RMB42,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Shenzhen Huazhong.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 includes
RMB517,000 generated from Shenzhen Huazhong.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017,
total group revenue for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been increased by RMB4,775,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would have been decreased by RMB859,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2017, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the
future cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated financial statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

28.

29.

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

IEME LT &)

HE-_ZT—+E+-_A=+—HILEEW
i A B AR R ZE o BT EE AR B RE N TS R4S
kTR A R#42,000t HE-T— L F
+Z A=+ —HIEFEMNKEBERYIE
FATE £ A RES17,0007T ©

WKEEER T —+tF—A—HEK"
HE-_ZT—+E+-_A=+—HILEEW
48 5= B W e #8538 hn A R #64,775,0007T © &
EEFE—+F+_A=Z+—HLEFENG
MR A A R #859,0007T © & kL #
SRR RMVARBHNBEER-Z
—+tF—A—BEXAEEER G ERLY
W DS e SE NI EBAI R E

==
o

MELTDREEARHYIER

TRHAMAEEREETHAELABBNE
B BRAECLFRCEY -BMEIBAHN
EENBEARERECHARRERE
HRAEENGEVBRRADERBE
REMERERENARE-

Non-cash changes

E2kA L

At Accrued Non-trade At
1 January Financing Group share issue amounts Dividend 31 December
2018 cash flow  Reorganisation cost offsetting declared 2018
RZE-NE EHBA R=F-N%
-A-8 HERERE £EE4Q BHE EHEFERLH BERRE tZA=t-8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(notes 2(vii),

2(viii) and 2(ix))

(R &E2(vii),

2viii) &2(ix))
Bank borrowing BITER - 1,779 - - - - 1,779
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZNBLRAZE 150,995 (40,307) 32,863 - (272,978) 132,600 3,173
Accrued share issue cost EARAETRE 807 (3,746) - 4,231 - - 1,292
151,802 (42,274) 32,863 4,231 (272,978) 132,600 6,244

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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30.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

29. MEEDMELEARBHHIE

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Continued)

(%)

Non-cash changes

*ne8
At Accrued At
1 January Financing Acquisition of share issue 31 December
2017 cash flow a subsidiary cost 2017
RZZ—tF Yk — e R RZZB—+F
—HA—H REREME =N BOMA +TZA=1+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR
(note 2(iii)
(P EE2(iin))
Amounts due to EOIEES NGRS
fellow subsidiaries 72,844 52,097 26,054 - 150,995
Accrued share issue cost  JEETIR (D BTN - (742) - 1,549 807
72,844 51,355 26,054 1,549 151,802
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 30. EXERERH

During the current year, the Group entered into the

following significant non-cash transactions:

(a)

On 1 July 2018, the Company had entered into

an agreement with China Aoyuan for which the
non-trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
had been settled by offsetting arrangements with
the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (namely
the declared dividend of RMB132,600,000) at the
amount of RMB132,600,000 as at 1 July 2018.

On 30 September 2018, the Company had

entered into an agreement with China Aoyuan
for which the non-trade amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries had been settled by offsetting
arrangements with the amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries (including the cash consideration
arising from Group Reorganisation at total sum of
RMB58,917,000 as set out in notes 2(iii), 2(vii),
2(viii) and 2(ix), respectively, and other non-trade
amount of RMB81,461,000) at the amount of

RMB140,378,000 as at 30 September 2018.

MAFEE AEEFTULUNTEAFRER

5

(@

R-ZFE—N\F+LtA—H A AH
FEBERY—HpE AEB
EHER-ZZE—N\FEA—HLH
MENRAZMNB AT RBEARE
132,600,0007T (RIEE R BE AR
#132,600,0007T ) #5 & JiE U [7) K B
BARIMIEE H1EE K8 -

R-ZZTE—NFNALA=Z1+H AR
RIEABEBEIY D& A
FREER _ZE—NFEALA=+
HLZHMEMNR RN B AR R KE
A E#140,378,0007T (B IR &
EEHELENRERELEAR
#58,917,0007T (7 Bl & 51 74 Bt 5
2(iii) ~ 2(vii) * 2(viii) & 2(ix) ) & H fib 3F
2 5148 58 AR #81,461,0007T )
HERKRZWNEARTNIIEE S
B FRIA ©

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. OPERATING LEASES 31.

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under RENEBEEEMED
operating leases in respect of KEREMNE N
rented premises during the year SR E 3%

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

H#EHR
REBERATEA
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
7,180 3,103

At the end of the year, apart from lease commitments
with fellow subsidiaries as detailed in note 27(b), the
Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with
third parties in respect of office premises and staff
dormitories which fall due as follows:

RBFER - BRI EE27(0) RS ERF R KB A
AR EAREIN AEEEE =TT TH
BHEEZ2HEETEERAENERET
BEENARRKERENFAESIRHWT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARBTT

Within one year —F A 3,311 1,683
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFELF (PHREEMTF) 3,832 156
7,143 1,839

Operating lease payment to fellow subsidiaries as
disclosed in note 27(b) represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and Chinese medical clinic.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of
one to five years.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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33.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitments for acquisition of [
property, plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided in

the consolidated financial statements

32. BHKIE

2018
=ZE-N\F
RMB’000
AR TR
FIHERRGARMBRES
BENBEYE.
B B5 K% 5% e B A AR
7,890

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AREF T

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has

direct and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: BiEREEREZ:
Place of Issued and fully Equity interest
incorporation/ paid capital/ attributable to Place of
Name of company establishment registered capital the Group operation Principal Activities
MR L/ BERTRARKRE/
DEER R HMER AEBELRE EEBE TEER
At 31 December
Rt=A=+-AH
2018 2017
ZB-N\f ZZT—t%
Directly held:
BEHRE:
BERFEERERARAA BVI US$1,000 100% 100%  HK Investment holding
AHLH (formerly known as
Aomygod Holding Company)
BERFREEERERAF EEHBRES 1,000%T 100% 100% N RE&ERK
(ABABRERERAA)
BERBRERREBRAA BVI US$1,000 N/A 100%  HK Investment holding
Aomaijia Trademark Holding
Investment Limited
(formerly known as
Aoyuan Healthy Living
Trademark Holdings Limited)
REZXBRERREBERRA EBEMFES 1,000%1T TEAR 100% S REER
(ABRERREEER
ERERRAA)
Indiirectly held:
FERE
RERREEHREBRAR Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% HK Investment holding
AHLI (formerly known as
Aomygod Cross Border
E-commerce Limited)
RERFEEREFRAA B 18T 100% 100% EF REER
(AIBRERERES
SEARAA)
REREAEE (BB)BERAA Hong Kong HK$1 100% N/A~ HK Investment holding
AHLHK
RERREE (BR)ERAR 0 18T 100% TER S REER

33. EBLFFE

RBEHR ARBRTIINBRREE

Legal form

ARFKA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BBREAERTA

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid capital/
Name of company establishment registered capital
EMmK L/ BRTRARKRE/
ARAR sk 3 HEREE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EEEE (&)
ERRERENEERERAF  PRC RMB50,000,000
Aoyuan Commercial Property
Management
ERREBENFERERAF  TE AR #50,000,0007C
EMREANEEERERAA  PRC RMB500,000
Guangzhou Aoyuan Innovation not yet paid up
Asset Management Company
Limited*
EMNEEAHEEERERAR HE AR #500,0007T
(HARSF)
EMRENERBERRA PRC RMB10,000,000
Guangzhou Aoyuan
EMRENERBERAA HE AR #10,000,0007C
FURENRERRBERAF  PRC RMB3,000,000
Zhongshan Aoyuan
FLURENEERRBERLA A AR #3,000,0007T
RILRENZERRBEERAF  PRC RMB3,000,000
Kunshan Aoyuan
RILRENEERRBEERAR HE AR #3,000,0007T
BERENERBERAA PRC RMBS5,000,000
Shenyang Aoyuan (formerly
known as EGREMFE R
PRBERA A
Shenyang Aoyuan Property
Management Services
Company Limited)
BHERENERBERDA FE AR #5,000,0007T
(RiBEBRENE
EERBERAA)
EHRENEREERRA PRC RMB3,000,000
Yulin Aoyuan
EHRENEREERRA e AR #3,000,0007C
EERANFERRBEARAA  PRC RMB3,000,000
Chongging Sui'ao
EERANKERRBAERLA  HE AR #3,000,0007C
ZHHHNEREERAA PRC RMB1,000,000
Anhui Hanlin
ZHHHNEREERRA e AR #1,000,0007C
RIEPYRERERAA PRC RMB1,000,000
Shenzhen Huazhong
RINEPNEERERRA e AR #1,000,0007C

33.

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group

AEEELRE

At 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2018 2017
—B-N\§ —T—t%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 90%
100% 90%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

B A TS 2)

Place of
operation Principal Activities

RS TEXH

PRC Investment holding
h REZKR
PRC Provision of property

management services

el RENFERRSB

PRC Provision of property
management services

FE REMFERRY

PRC Provision of property
management services

FE RENFERRY

PRC Provision of property
management services

FE REMFERRY

PRC Provision of property

management services

gl RENFERRS

PRC Provision of property
management services

HE RENFERRS

PRC Provision of property
management services

HE RENFERRHB

PRC Provision of property
management services

HE RENFERRS

PRC Provision of property
management services

HE RENFERRH

Legal form

DAFKR

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BEBRERAA

Limited liability
company
BBREAARA

Limited liability
company
BEBRERAA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BREMAA

Limited liability
company
BREMAA

Limited liability
company
BREMAA

Limited liability
company
BREMAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE
BE—T—\FE+-A=+—HBILEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

NAEE

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HERE (&)

EMRERELEERERAA
Aoyuan Commercial Operation

ENRERELEERERAA

FILREABEXERERAR
Foshan Aoyuan Commercialsh
Management Company
Limited*

FILREBXERERAR

IMRERZERERAA
Jiangmen Aoyuan Commercial
Management Company
Limited*

IMRERXEEARAA

REREESEXERERAA
Shaoguan Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

REREESEFERERAA

AGRBESHEEEARAR
Liuyang Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

ARRERGHREEERAF

BEERERESEFERERAA
Chongging Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

ERRARGHEEEARAT

HERERSHEEEARAR
Zhuhai Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

HERERGHREEERAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
MR L/
Rt %

PRC

TE

PRC

PRC

TE

PRC

FE

PRC

TE

PRC

PRC

TE

Issued and fully
paid capital/
registered capital
BRTRARKRE/
HEMEE

RMB 10,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #10,000,0007
(HAEE)

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007C
(HAREE)
RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007T
(BARSE)
RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007C
(HAREE)
RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007T
(BAREE)
RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007T
(HAREE)
RMB5,000,000

not yet paid up

AE5,000,0007T
(HARSEE)

33. REBATFHES &)

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group

AEBELRE

At 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2018 2017
g-NE -TiF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Place of
operation

ek

PRC

FE

PRC

PRC

TE

PRC

FE

PRC

TE

PRC

FE

PRC

TE

Principal Activities

TEXH

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEELERS

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELRY

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELERS

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELRY

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELERS

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELRS

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEELERS

Legal form

DAFR

Limited liability
company
EREARA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

RERFEEEREERAT —T—\FR
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FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

33.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

DNAEB

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HERE: (&)

NERERSHEERARAR
Wuhua Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

hERERGHREEERAA

ELREERESHENE
EEBMRAF Shenyang
Aoyuan Convention Plaza

ERREERESEHE
NEEEARAF

EHAERSHEERERRA
Jiaoling Aoyuan Square
Commercial Management
Company Limited*

EHRAERSHEERERRA

EMREAREREXERAR
Guangzhou Aoyuan Health
Industry Company Limited*
(formerly known as
ENEERBRBEERAA
Guangzhou Jiayuan Networks
Technology Company Limited)

EMRERREEXERAA

(R EMERR SRBE
BRAA)

RIREBERHEBERAA
Shenzhen Aojia Network
Technology Company Limited*

R REBERRERAR

IHAERRELEREARAA
Yulin Aoyuan Commercial
Operation Management
Company Limited*

IHAEBRELEREARAA

EMREZEREREE
EEBRRA
Guangzhou Aoyuan Luogang
Commercial Management
Company Limited*
ENREREEELEER
BRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
EMmK L/
Rt %

PRC

T E

PRC

FE

PRC

PRC

T E

PRC

T E

PRC

TE

Issued and fully
paid capital/
registered capital
BRTRARKRE/
HEREE

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AR%5,000,0007
(HARSEE)

RMB5,000,000

AR #5,000,0007

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AR%5,000,0007
(HAREE)

RMB1,000,000
not yet paid up

AR#1,000,0007
(HARSE)

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AR #5,000,0007T
(MASE)

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AE%5,000,0007
(HARSE)

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AK#5,000,0007C
(HARSE)

33.

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group

rEEELRE

At 31 December

R+t=-BA=t+-H
2018 2017
—BE-N§ ZZT—+tF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

B A TS 2)

Place of
operation

EESE

PRC

HE

PRC

hE

PRC

hE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

Principal Activities

TEXH

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHREERSE

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEELRY

Provision of commercial
operational services

REUBEEZRE

Provision of health
management
consulting services

REREE R R RS

Enhanced property
services and operation

of the mobile
application

BRMERBRELR
PER

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEEERE

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEEERS

Legal form

DAFKR

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERMEE
BE—T—\FE+-A=+—HBILEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

NAEE

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HERE (&)

EHREAAREEEEERAA
Ningdu Aoyuan Commercial
Operation Management
Company Limited*

EYRRRRXGEEERRAA

EMNREHELBNE
RBERRA
Guangzhou Aoyuan Yilian
Peninsula Property Services
Company Limited*
EMREBEYBYERS
BRAR

EMNERREFXERERAA
Panyu Aoyuan Commercial

ENERRRAREEEARAT

BEMENRLEYEER
AR 22 5 Qingyuan Qingxin
Lexin Property Management
Company Limited*

BEMENBRLENEER
BRAR

HEREREEEARAT
Hunan Aoyuan Commercial
Property Management
Company Limited*

HEREREEEARAT

ERANBREEANEGRAF
Guangdong Aoyue Health
Management Consulting
Company Limited*

ERARERERZABRAR

EMARBRERMZE
ARAF
Guangzhou Aoyue Medical
Aesthetic Clinic Company
Limited*
EMRRBREERMZH
BRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
MR L/
Rt %

PRC

TE

PRC

HE

PRC

FE

PRC

HE

PRC

PRC

HE

PRC

T E

Issued and fully
paid capital/
registered capital
BRTRARKRE/
HEMEE

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up

AE5,000,0007T
(HARSE)

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000
not yet paid up
AR #5,000,0007T
(HASF)

RMB500,000

AR #500,0007T

RMB10,000,000
not yet paid up

AR #10,000,0007T
(HASF)
RMB64,050,000
not yet paid up
AR %64,050,0007T
(HARGE)

RMB1,000,000
not yet paid up

AR #1,000,0007T
(HARGE)

33. REBATFHES &)

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group

rEEELRE

At 31 December

W+t=B=t+-H
2018 2017
“B-\Ff ZZ—t%§
100% 100%
100% 100%
70% 70%
70% 70%
100% N/A
100% AR
100% N/A
100% TER
100% N/A
100% AR
100% N/A
100% TER
100% N/A
100% TER

Place of
operation

ek

PRC

TE

PRC

TE

PRC

FE

PRC

TE

PRC

FE

PRC

TE

PRC

TE

RERBEETEEERAT —T—N\F8R% 201

Principal Activities

TEXH

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELERS

Provision of property
management services

RENEXEERSE

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELRS

Provision of property
management services

RENEXEERSE

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBEELRY

Provision of health
management
consulting services

RERREERARSE

Provision of health
management
consulting services

REBRREERARSE

Legal form

DAFR

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BEREARA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
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i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33.
(Continued)
Place of Issued and fully Equity interest
incorporation/ paid capital/ attributable to
Name of company establishment registered capital the Group
EMmK L/ BRTRARKRE/
DA LB sk 3 HEREE AEEELRE
At 31 December
R+=B=+-8
2018 2017
—BE-N§ ZZT—+tF
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EEEE (&)
ENRETEMDHERLRT PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A
Guangzhou Aoyuan Traditional not yet paid up
Chinese Medicine Out-patient
Centre Company Limited*
EMREGEFNZHERAR HE AK¥1,000,0007T 100% TEA
(HAREE)
EMREDBLHERRA PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A
Guangzhou Aoyuan Traditional not yet paid up
Chinese Medicine Clinic
Company Limited*
EMREDBLHERRA hE AR #1,000,0007C 100% TE
(HASF)
EMRBEFEERTABERF  PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A
Guangzhou Aoyuan Healthy
Life Design Company Limited*
EMRERREERAERAR  HE AR #1,000,0007C 100% TiE A
EMEEREEEEMSRL PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A
ARAF
Guangzhou Aoyuan
Healthy Life Gardening
Company Limited*
EMRERREEERMGRL FE AR 1,000,000 100% TEA
BRAHF
EMNRESAREEER PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A
BRAT not yet paid up
Guangzhou Aoyuan Xianyu
Commercial Management
Company Limited*
ENREGAHELEER Gl AK%1,000,0007C 100% TEA
BRAR (HARSE)
* The English name is for identification purpose only.

None of the above subsidiaries had issued any debt

securities at 31 December 2018.
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BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

B A TS 2)

Place of
operation

EESE

PRC

PRC

hE

PRC

hE

PRC

PRC

E

Principal Activities

TEXH

Provision of health
management
consulting services

REEEERHENRYE

Provision of health
management
consulting services

REEEEREARY

Provision of design
management and
consulting services

RERAE R R AR

Provision of cleaning
and gardening
services

REFRRBERE

Provision of commercial
operational services

REBHEEERS

PSR iEN Tl

Legal form

DAFKR

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BEREARA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

RZZE-NF+ZR=+—H0" L&

NEEEITEMEEES
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35.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowing, non-trade nature portion of amount due to
fellow subsidiaries, capital/share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically and considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital and
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends and new share issues as well as the issue
of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

34. B¥EARER

35.

AEEEBRE A RRALENETE
i T A A O R B 7 T 2
0 R PR B R A L - A 5 L
CEER RS E

L
Bk i

N

A

AEENEARBRBRITENR BNE
ZMBARIEEHUHER D RE KA
PN e feti 4 o

AEEEEBEMRIEARBRERE
AR R EEIERE AR RO R L8
BIRAT IS R AT RIA R BITH B X
BOREEKFEHEERERRE-

&MIR

a. Categories of financial instruments a. eMIAER

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—tF

RMB‘000 RMB'000

AR® T AREFT
Financial assets SHMEE

Loan and receivables/amortised cost B 3k & J& Ug 3k T8 # $5 AR ZX 454,804 538,985
Financial liabilities ctRmEaesd

Amortised cost E I 173,271 275,196

RERELTEESRAT —2—/\FH% 203



204

35.
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i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

b. Financial risk management objectives b.

and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and related parties, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank
borrowing, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
and related parties. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The management of the Group monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group through internal risk
assessment which analyses exposures by degree
and magnitude of risks. The risks included market
risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below and remained unchanged from prior year.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing

market interest rate on bank balances.

The

management considered that interest rate risk of
bank balances is insignificant and accordingly no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowing
(see note 25 for details of the borrowing). The
management will review the borrowing in fixed
rate and ensure it is within reasonable range.
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35.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group's transactions were mainly conducted
in RMB, the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries, and its major receivables and
payables are denominated in RMB. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
the assets and liabilities which are denominated
in currency other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity. The majority of
the Group’s foreign currency transactions and
balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The management closely monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets are mainly bank balances at the
end of each reporting period and the carrying
amounts are as follows:

Assets BE
Hong Kong dollars &I

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

35. @M TH &)

b.

eHEAREEZERREE (&)

w5 ()
SMNE

REENRZHEEZARRE REN
BARMINEEEARKET &
TERUFERENREGUAR
BIE-AEEHEAEEAEEE
BREEB I EETENEE
LRBEELNIIMNERR - NEEDN
REBDHMERR 5 J 4 84839 A TT AT
B-EREZYEZIIERR I
BRAHERZBEHEANINE
R -

REREPRANEININESEE
MEETEARITES EFEEE
E] RN

2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFR  ARBETT
15,981 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IFEMBHRRNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €M TR &)

b. Financial risk management objectives b. SHEAKETEEAREREE (&)
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) SRR (4E)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) SMNE RS ()

Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The following table details the Group's sensitivity TR AREBEH AR L AB
to a 5% decrease in RMB against the relevant B IE RN [E5% MY BURRE - FTE A
foreign currency. The sensitivity rates used ZBREREEIRELEXNSIRE
represents management’s assessment of the TEF FATIER Rl o T 21 IF B
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange RNEERBERMNEARE XA
rates. A positive number below indicates an SN BB 3R TN FE5% BRIZ A & B -
increase in post-tax profit for the year where RMB AR S HEEINE R IE =E
weakens 5% against the relevant currency. For 5%  BIIBR 3 12 0m A 5 % 2| & %08
a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant BEROTZE U TEREREE-

currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit and the balances
below would be negative.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Hong Kong dollars &I
Profit for the year F N5 799 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and related
parties as at 31 December 2018 with details set
out in notes 19 and 20. The management of the
Group has made periodic individual assessment
on recoverability based on historical settlement
records and adjusts for forward-looking
information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these fellow subsidiaries and related
parties and considered the future prospects
of the industry these counterparties operate,
the management of the Group consider their
probability of default and exposure of default
are low, and accordingly, no impairment was
recognised in respect of the amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and related parties.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on
trade receivables are assessed individually for
corporate customers with significant balances
and/or collectively for large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

In order to minimise the credit risk with the
corporate customers, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group assesses the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

& M R

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE —%

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the
management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate, for example
the Group has considered the consistently
low historical default rate in connection with
payments on behalf of residents, and concluded
that credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding other receivables is insignificant.
The management of the Group has assessed
that other receivables have not had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
probability of default is insignificant.

The management of the Group considers bank
balances that are deposited with state-owned
banks or financial institutions with high credit
rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
directors of the Company consider that the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit-rating issuers during the year.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group’s management monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

All of the Group’'s liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flows as all the
financial liabilities are repayable on demand or
within three months at the end of the year other
than bank borrowing.

The following table details the Group’s
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. @M IR =)

b. Financial risk management objectives b. SHEAKETEAREREE (&)
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REELREEE (&)
Liquidity tables TEET &K
2018 —E-N\F
Weighted  On demand
average or less Total Total
interest than 90 91-180 181-365 undiscounted carrying
rate days days days cash flow amount
MEFEY RERY 9KE 181K 2 REBR
Gk S HR0K 180K 365%k HEeRELE FEHELR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR

Trade and other payables &5 R E BN

HB - 164,833 - - 164,833 164,833
Amounts due to ERRRMEAA

fellow subsidiaries IR - 6,659 - - 6,659 6,659
Bank borrowing RITER 7% - - 1,904 1,904 1,779
171,492 - 1,904 173,396 173,271

2017 —E—+fF

Weighted ~ On demand
average or less Total Total
interest than 90 91-180 181-365  undiscounted carrying
rate days days days cash flow amount
MEFHEH BESS NKE 181KE REBR

ME HRIOK 180K 365K HEREBLE HREELEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARET:

Trade and other payables &5 R Ef[EL

B - 123,160 - - 123,160 123,160

Amounts due to ENRZNE A
fellow subsidiaries FB - 152,036 - - 152,036 152,036
275,196 - - 275,196 275,196
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
C. Fair value measurement of financial C.
instruments

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

35. @M TR #)

EMTIAZAFEHNE

ARREZRR HBAPBRRRK
FIREBERAARNEREELS
MEENRHERENFERS-

36. ERFMBKRAR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AR F T

Non-current asset kREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHNBARZKRE 70,007 7

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H fth i W k8 5,780 1,549
Amount due from a subsidiary e — R M B A B AR 1,443 -
7,223 1,549
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables E h JE T RIE 5,170 3,229
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR EENETEE] 17,708 2,973
22,878 6,202
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (15,655) (4,653)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 54,352 (4,646)

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N - -
Reserves 5 54,352 (4,646)
Total equity BT 54,352 (4,646)
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37.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REMBERERME
BE-T-\FE+-A=t+-ALEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. 2 FIMHERRAE &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves EAFKFEH
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B3 EE ZitEE Bet
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETF T ARE T ARBEFT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H - - -
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZEMAX
expense for the year FOEE - (4,646) (4,646)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%F
+=—A=+—H - (4,646) (4,646)
Issue of shares IR 74,511 - 74,511
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZEMAX
expense for the year 48 =E - (15,513) (15,513)
At 31 December 2018 R-TE-N\%F
+=—A=+—H 74,511 (20,159) 54,352
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 37. H&=ER
The following significant events took place subsequent RZEB-NFH+_A=+—HREBEEUT
to 31 December 2018: BRFEIE:

(@)

On 18 March 2019, the Company capitalised
the sum of HK$5,249,800 (equivalent to
RMB4,487,000) standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company and
applied the amount towards paying up in full
524,980,000 shares of nominal value of HK$0.01
each for allotment to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the
Company immediately before the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

On 18 March 2019, the Company issued
175,000,000 ordinary shares (a public offering in
Hong Kong of 17,500,000 and an international
offering of 157,500,000 shares) of nominal value
of HK$0.01 each pursuant to the global offering
at the price of HK$3.66 per share (equivalent
to approximately RMB3.13 per share) and the
Company'’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on the same date.

@ WKR-ZZE—AFZA+N\B AR
A ARRRKG & ERERIE
5,249,800 L (IHE RN AR
4,487,00070) B E AW H A
HEHKREMECIAE TREH R
524,980,000/ f% {7 + M 7R 78 A &) A%
DB AP BT 2 BB B T R 5 A
NGl & BT )i =i

by WK-ZTE—AF=ZA+N\B AR
AIREE2KEEZRTRI66ET
(HERSBRHOARE3I3T)H
8 # 3£ 77175,000,0008% (FE A
B2 17,500,0000% & BB 2% &
157,500,0000% ) & X E{E0.018 7T
MEER BARBIRGNERAE
BT ET e
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Financial Summary

MEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLLFE

maRiA

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-1F —E—-XF “E—+F —E-N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFTT ARETT AR¥Txn
Revenue WA 179,463 265,440 435,977 618,835
Profit before taxation B& 5 A Al 37,518 59,393 100,406 108,495
Income tax expense PSR % (10,603) (18,365) (30,474) (30,240)
Profit for the year FRRF 26,915 41,028 69,932 78,255
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND ReEE RERAR
LIABILITIES
As at 31 December
R+t=ZA=+-8
2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-FF “E-RE el —E-N\E
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETLT AR¥Txn
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE 5,911 12,829 17,873 29,962
Current assets MBEE 175,211 317,449 553,006 473,084
Total assets BEE 181,122 330,278 570,879 503,046
Equity and liabilities BERkEE
Non-current liabilities FRBAaE - 498 982 757
Current liabilities MEEE 128,672 248,936 458,903 375,998
Total liabilities BEE 128,672 249,434 459,885 376,755
Equity attributable to owners of ARRBBEAEEER 52,450 80,521 110,489 125,675
the Company
Non-controlling interests FERER - 323 505 551
Total equity and liabilities BEZLEE 181,122 330,278 570,879 502,981
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